
AGENDA 

PINE COUNTY BOARD MEETING 


District 1 Commissioner Hallan (Chair) 
District 2 Commissioner Pangerl 
District 3 Commissioner Chaffee 
District 4 Commissioner Rossow 
District 5 Vacant 

Tuesday, June 4, 2013, 1 :00 p.m. 
Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota 

A) Call meeting to order 

B) Pledge of Allegiance 

C) Public Forum. Members of the public are invited to speak. Each speaker should state 
hislher name and limit comments to three (3) minutes. 

D) Approve Agenda 

E) Approve Minutes of May 21,2013 board meeting and Summary for pUblication. 

F) Minutes of Boards, Committees and Correspondence 
Pine County Land Surveyor Monthly Report - May, 2013 
Pine County HRA Senior Housing Regular Meeting - April 24, 2013 

G) Approve Consent Agenda 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The consent agenda is voted on without any discussion. Any commissioner may request an 
item be removed and added to the regular agenda. 

1. May, 2013 Disbursements 
Disbursements JouTI1al Report, May 1, 2013 - May 31, 2013 

2. Applications for Abatement: 
Consider: 
a. 	 Chad Purull, 77814 Purull Kowitz Road, Willow River, PID 22.0178.000, pay 2012 
b. 	 Brian & Debra Hoppe, NE~ ofSE~, 16-38-20, Rock Creek, PID 43.0037.000, pay 

2012 & 2013 

Pine County Board o/Commissioners Page 1 	 June 4.2013 



3. Application for Exempt Permit 
Consider Application for Exempt Permit for MN Sokol Camp Association to conduct 
Minnesota lawful gambling on August 11, 2013 at 19201 Woodland Acres South, Pine 
City (Chengwatana Twp.). 

4. 	 Resolution for Repurchase of Tax Forfeited Land 
Consider Resolution 2013-22 for Repurchase of Tax Forfeited Land in full, Luann F. 
Imdieke, PID 03.0035.004 and authorize Board Chair and County Auditor to sign. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

1. Pine County Historical Society 
Approve Pine County Historical Society to obtain fax-forfeited property via a 
Conditional Use Deed from the Department of Revenue. Use of the property will 
include fundraising events to offset operational costs of the building. 

2. Rediscover Old Hwy. 61 
Approve $500 contribution towards Rediscover Old Hwy. 61 grant. 

3. Flood Mitigation Buyout - Title and Closing Services 
Approve award of title and closing services for properties involved in the 2012-2013 
Flood Mitigation Buyout Program to Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd. Total potential cost if all 
properties are purchased: With title insurance: $82,785.64; Without title insurance: 
$63,152.13. 

4. Electronics Communications Resources (ECR) Policy 
Approve revised Section 17 of Personnel Policy and Procedures -- Electronics 
Communications Resources (ECR) Policy. 

5. Commissioner Updates 

6. 	 Other 

7. 	 Upcoming Meetings 
a. 	Special Personnel Committee Meeting, Tuesday, June 4, 2013, 8:00 a.m., 

Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota 
b. 	 Committee of the Whole - Economic Development, June 4, 2013, 10:00 a.m., 

Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 
c. 	 Pine County Board Meeting, Tuesday, June 4, 2013, 1:00 p.m., Public Health 

Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

Pine County Board ofCommissioners Page 2 	 June 4,2013 

http:63,152.13
http:82,785.64


d. Personnel Committee Meeting, Tuesday, June 11, 2013, 8:00 a.m., Hinckley 
City Hall, Hinckley, Minnesota. 

e. Governor's Broadband Task Force, June 11,2013, 10:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m., 
Lake Lena, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

f. AMC District 1 Spring Meeting, June 14, 2013, 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m., 
Carlton, Minnesota. 

g. Technology Meeting, Tuesday, June 18,2013, 8:30 a.m., Comn1issioner 
Conference Room, Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

h. Pine County Board Meeting, Tuesday, June 18,2013, 10:00 a.m., Boardroom, 
Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

1. 	 Pine County Health and Human Services Meetings, Tuesday, June 18, 2013, 
to commence after Pine County Board Meeting, Boardroom, Pine County 
Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

J. 	 Facilities Committee Meeting, Tuesday, June 18,2013, to commence after 
Pine County Health & Human Services Meeting, Commissioner Conference 
Room, Pine City, Minnesota. 

k. 	 NLX meeting, Wednesday, June 26, 2013, 9:30 a.m., Boardroom, Pine County 
Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

8. Adjourn 

Pine County Board o/Commissioners Page 3 	 June 4.2013 



From:PINE COUNTY HIGHWAY 320 629 6736 05/28/2013 08:17 #412 P.002/002 

PINE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS PINE COUH7Y i 

_Itl'rA' 


IDGHWAYDEPARTMENT 
405 Airport Road NE 
Pine City, MN 55063 

;- --./ 

Telephone 320-216-4200 
Fax: 320-629-6736 Mark A. LeBrun, P.E. 

1-800-450-7463 Ext. 4200 County Engineer 

Pine County Land Surveyor Monthly Report 


May 2013 


T42N R17W Section IS, search for, set, tie out and GPS PLSS corners, update files for 

County Land Department. 


T3SN R22W Section 4, research records, set GPS control, compute corner search areas, 

search for, set, tie out and GPS PLSS corners, update files. 


CSAH 46, T45N R18W, compute comer search areas, search for, set, tie out and GPS 

PLSS corners and privatelROW comers, excavate with a backhoe for original PLSS 

comer evidence, update files. 


CSAH 11, T39N R21 Wand R22W, excavate with a backhoe for original PLSS comer 

evidence, update files. 

CR 167, T45N R19W Section 6, compute comer.search areas, excavate with a backhoe 

for original PLSS corner evidence, update files. 


Provide HARN coordinate data to County Recorder as needed for GIS. 


Review legal descriptions for County ROW Dept. and County Land Dept. as needed. 


Review Plats and Minor Subdivisions for County Zoning Dept. as needed. 


Review and file PLSS corner certificates provided by private surveyors. 


Review, edit and file Certificates of Survey created by County Surveyor. 


Robin T. Mathews, Pine County Surveyor 

Monthly Report May 2013 doc 



PINE COUNTY HRA SENIOR HOUSING 

510 Fifth Street Office 

Sandstone, MN 55072 


(320) 245-5140 


Sandstone Manor Finlayson Manor 
510 Fifth Street 6524 Broadway Street 

Sandstone, MN 55072 Finlayson, MN 55735 

The regular meeting of the Pine County HRA Senior Housing Board of Directors was 
held on April 24, 2013, at the Sandstone Manor. Commissioners of the HRA present 
were Board Chair Dorothy Stockamp, Cheri Drilling, Dean Dronen, and Jan Oak. Staff 
members present were Executive Director Janice Gustafson and Resident Managers 
Susan Blake and Evelyn Yocum. There were no residents present. 

1. 	 The meeting was called to order at 2:00 P.M. by Board Chair D. Stockamp. 

2. 	 The minutes from March 27, 2013, were reviewed by the Board members. A 
motion was made by J. Oak and was seconded by C. Drilling to accept the 
minutes. Motion carried: Yeas 4, Nays O. 

3. 	 The monthly financial statements and the investment report were presented by J. 
Gustafson. A motion was made by Board Chair D. Stockamp and was 
seconded by D. Dronen to approve the financial statements and the investment 
report. Motion carried: Yeas 4, Nays O. 

4. 	 Executive Director's Report. The written Executive Director's report was 
reviewed by Board members. 

5. 	 Old Business. 

a) 	 Vacancies. As of this date, there are three vacancies at the Finlayson 
Manor. Paperwork is being processed on a prospective resident for the 
Finlayson Manor. 

b) 	 At this point in time, the HRA has not been served with court papers as 
threatened by Robert HarBoldt who is demanding the return of his 
security deposit. The cost to repair damage in the apartment he vacated 
was over $6,400. His security deposit and earned interest amounting to 
$187.32 was withheld. 

1 




__ 

6. 	 New Business. 

a) 	 The HRA Board of Directors has accepted the verbal resignation from 
Board Commissioner Arild Frederiksen. Board members discussed 
possible community members that could fill the vacancy. The By-Laws 
of the HRA will be reviewed to ensure compliance. 

b) Finlayson Manor cat problems (cat-ros-trophy problems per D. Dronen). 
The HRA has received verbal complaints from FM residents regarding 
numerous neighborhood cats around the outside of the building. The 
resident who has been feeding these cats on the FM property has been 
spoken to a number of times a no avail; therefore, Commissioner D. 
Dronen agreed to speak to him and ask him to only feed the cats off the 
FM property and away from the entrance doors. 

7. 	 Resident Managers' Reports. 

a) 	 Finlayson Manor. S. Blake was concerned about the numerous 
disagreements occurring between the residents and wondered if they 
were "sunshine deprived." She stated there have been no further 
comments or interest by the residents in having a raised garden if the 
HRA was not agreeable to totally funding their project. 

b) 	 Sandstone Manor. Yocum reported one of the residents was taken by 
ambulance to the emergency room and was currently in the nursing 
home. This resident is not expected to return to the Manor. 

c) 	 Board Chair D. Stockamp thanked both resident managers for their hard 
work and diligence. 

8. 	 Resident Comments/Questions. There were no residents present. 

9. 	 A motion was made by C. Drilling and was seconded by J. Oak to adjourn the 
meeting at 3:09 P.M. Motion carried: Yeas 4, Nays O. 

10. The next HRA Board meeting is scheduled for May 22, 2013, at the Finlayson 
Manor. 

~ 
6~~.)lck~ 	 ~h~ 
Dorothy Stoc~p 0 Janice S. Gustafson 
HRA Board Chair Executive Director 

2 

._. ...._------------- 



MINUTES OF PINE COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, May 21, 2013, 10:00 a.m. 
Boardroom, Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota 

Chair Hallan called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Present were Commissioners 
Mitch Pangerl, Steve Chaffee, and Curt Rossow. Also present were County Attorney 
John Carlson and County Administrator David Minke. 

The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 

Chair Hallan called for a moment of silence in honor of Veterans Service Officer Dean 
Dronen who passed away May 15, 2013. 

Chair Hallan called for public comment. The following expressed their opposition of the 
Northern Lights Express: Dave Ostenson, Scott Martin, Al Wolter, Kathy Moris, Laura 
McKenzie, Patrice DeGray, Ben Wiener, Carolyn Stivers, Christine Jackson. 

Chair Hallan requested the following revisions to the Regular Agenda: 
Remove #2: NLX presentation 
Add #IE: Approve IT Supervisor job description. 
Add #9A: Approve Veterans Service Officer job description. 
Add #9B: Approve filling of Veterans Service Officer position. 
Add: Closed session - tax forfeited land sale. 

Commissioner Chaffee moved to approve the amended agenda. Second by 
Commissioner Pangerl. Motion carried 4-0. 

Commissioner Pangerl moved to approve the Minutes of the May 7, 2013 board meeting 
and Summary for publication. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Minutes of Boards, Committees and Correspondence 
Pine County Soil & Water Conservation District Board Meeting Minutes-Apr. 4, 2013 
East Central Regional Library Board Minutes - April 8, 2013 

Commissioner Pangerl moved to acknowledge the Minutes of Boards, Committees and 
Correspondence. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Commissioner Chaffee moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Second by 
Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

May 21. 201 3 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners Page 1 of8 



CONSENT AGENDA 
The consent agenda is voted on without any discussion. Any commissioner may request 
an item be removed and added to the regular agenda. 

1 	 R . A ·1 2013 C h B 1. 	 eVJew ,prJ, as a ance 
Fund April 30, 2012 April 30, 2013 Increase(Decrease) 

$44,710.08General Fund -$1,142,806.89 -$1,098,096.81 
Health and Human 
Services Fund 

$1,316,896.90 $833,714.10 ($483,182.80) 

Road and Bridge Fund $7,240,378.19 $5,559,148.29 ($1,681,229.90) 

Land Management Fund 1,046,751.86 $1,631,927.33 $585,175.47 
TOTAL (inc non-major 
funds) 

12,649,034.22 10,248,547.10 ($2,400,487.12) 

2. 	 Applications for Abatement: 
Approve: 
a. 	 Gregory Clark, 27966 Oak Bend Way, Sturgeon Lake, PID 31.0221.001, pay 

2013 
b. 	 Eunice Olson, 38396 Warloe Road, Moose Lake, PID 33.0104.000, pay 2013 
c. 	 Marlen & Annette Anderson, 94132 Partridge Rd. No., Sturgeon Lake, PID 

33.0004.000, pay 2013 
d. 	 Western Bank, 608 Fire Monument Rd., Hinckley, PID 40.0005.024, pay 2011 

& 2012 
e. 	 Steve & Lisa Hosna, 45714 Dove Rd., Hinckley, PID 15.0030.000, pay 2013 

3. 	Application for Premises Permit 
Approve application for Pokegama Lake Association to conduct Minnesota lawful 
gambling at Beroun Saloon, 24715 Main St., Beroun (Mission Creek Twp.) 

4. 	 Donation 
Approve: 
A. Accept $2,500 donation from Wal-Mart Foundation and designate to the Pine 

County Sheriff's Office K-9 program; to be used to help offset expense of 
camne program. 

B. Accept $2,500 donation from Wal-Mart Foundation; to be used to help offset 
the expense of the volunteer posse. 

5. 	Awards 
Sheriff Cole presented the following awards: 


Dispatcher Marcella Danielson: Award of Merit 

Office Manager Denise Baran: Award of Commendation 

Chief Deputy Steve Blackwell: Medal of Merit 


Page 2 of8May 21. 2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 



6. 	 Training 
Approve County Administrator David Minke to attend the Economic Development 
Association of Minnesota summer conference, June 26 - 28,2013, Duluth. 
Registration $395; lodging (2) nights, $295; mileage $98; total cost: $788. 
Attendance at this conference will support the board's goal of increasing county 
activity with economic development. Funds are available in the 2013 

Administrator's budget. 


7. 	 New Hire 

Approve: 

A. Authorize the hiring of 4-H Summer Assistant Jessica Fischer, effective June 3, 

2013, $11.62 per hour, grade A13, step 1 (at a cost not to exceed $4,000). 
B. Authorize the hiring ofpart-time Corrections Officers Sara Anderson, effective 

May 23, 2013, pending completion of pre-employment screenings, $16.04 per 
hour, B-23. 

C. 	Authorize the hiring of part-time Corrections Officers Michael Ledin, effective 
May 23, 2013, pending completion ofpre-employment screenings, $16.04 per 
hour, B-23. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

1. 	 Personnel Committee Meeting 
The Personnel Committee met on May 14,2013 and made the following 

recommendations: 

A. 	Sheriff's Office 

• 	 Accept the resignation of Deputy Sheriff Noah Heiller, effective May 11, 2013. 
• 	 Authorize promotion of two part-time deputy sheriffs to full-time. 
• 	 Authorize the backfill of two full-time deputy sheriff positions. 
• 	 Ratify the Pine County Sheriffs Office sworn peace officers staffing level for 

2013 and 2014 at 31. 

Discussion was held as to past and present staffing levels, police calls, 
expenditures and revenue of the sheriffs office. Sheriff Cole is requesting 
staffing for 33 full-time deputies. Commissioner Chaffee suggested Cole meet 
with Auditor-Treasurer Cathy Clemmer and/or Chief Deputy Auditor-Treasurer 
Paul Johnson regarding the sheriff s office budget and then readdress his 
staffing concerns with the Personnel Committee -- a special Personnel 
Committee meeting is scheduled for June 4, 2013, 8:00 a.m., Public Health 
Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

May 21, 2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 	 Page30f8 



Motion by Commissioner Rossow to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee (Sheriff s Office). Second by Commissioner Chaffee. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

B. Hil!hway Department 
• 	 Accept the retirement of Highway Maintenance Worker Greg Museus, 

effective May 3, 2013, and authorize internal replacement and external 
backfill. 

• 	 Authorize the transfer of Maintenance Engineer Shawn Linnell to previous 
position of Engineer Technician III per AFSCME contract, effective May 
27,2013. Maintenance Engineer position will remain vacant. 

• 	 Authorize termination ofprobationary employee Engineer Technician III 
Richard Reineccius, effective May 24, 2013. 

• 	 Authorize internal advertisement for Highway Maintenance Supervisor, 
Sandstone. 

• 	 Authorize advertising for (2) vacant highway maintenance workers prior to 
August 1,2013. 

Motion by Commissioner Rossow to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee (Highway Department). Second by Commissioner Hallan. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

c. 	Land and Zoning Department 
County Administrator David Minke provided an overview of the reorganizational 
structure of the Land and Zoning Department: 

• 	 County forester: report to county auditor. 
• 	 Creation of Land Services Director position and promote Kelly Schroeder to 

position. 
• 	 Eliminate Land & Zoning Administrator position. 
• 	 Creation of Senior Environmental Technician/Zoning Administrator 


position- to report to Land Services Director. 

• 	 Eliminate one of two Environmental Technician positions (opportunity for 

promotion) remaining technician 
• 	 Creation of Senior Appraiser position. 
• 	 Reclassification of deputy assessor. 

This structure is similar to Mille Lacs County. Minke indicated this is a work in 
progress and that adjustments will be made as necessary. Commissioner Pangerl 
stated his concern as to the large amount of additional duties assigned to Assessor 
Schroeder and any concerns Schroeder may have should be brought before the 

May 21. 2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 	 Page 4 of8 



board. Commissioner Chaffee indicated a possible adjustment to Schroeder's 
compensation be reviewed, if necessary. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee (Land and Zoning Department). Second by Commissioner 
Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

D. Administrator's Office 
• 	 Approve six month probationary period performance pay increase for 

Administrative Assistant Debbie Gray from $15.12 per hour to $16.87 per 
hour effective May 9,2013. 

E. 	 IT Supervisor Job Description 
• 	 Approve IT Supervisor job description. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee as to performance pay increase for Debbie Gray and 
approval of IT Supervisor job description. Second by Commissioner Rossow. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

Other items are for information only. 

2. NLX Presentation - Ken Buehler 
Rescheduled to June 18, 2013 board meeting. 

3. Central Minnesota Jobs and Training Services, Inc. (CMJTS) 
To be rescheduled. 

4. East Central Solid Waste Commission (ECSWC) 
County Administrator David Minke requested approval of Resolution 2013-21 
allowing East Central Solid Waste Commission to update and submit a Solid 
Waste Management Plan (SWMP) on Pine County's behalf. Chair Hallan 
concurred. The last time a SWMP had been submitted was 2006. Minke also 
explained the proposed Contract between ECSWC and Pine County for the 
operation of a household hazardous waste management system was not time 
sensitive and will be presented for consideration at a future meeting. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve Resolution 2013-21 -- Authorization 
for East Central Solid Waste Commission Updating and Submission of Solid 
Waste Management Plan. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

May 21. 2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 	 Page 50f8 



5. Final Payment - Hardrives, Inc. - #1202 
County Engineer Mark LeBrun reported to the board, and discussion was held, 

regarding the completion of Contract #1202. 

(inclusive ofCP 058-040-001: located on CSAH 40; between CSAH 52 and 

CSAH 46; CP 058-051-00]: located on CSAH 51; between CSAH 50 and Carlton 

CSAH 10; and CP 058-052-001, located on CSAH 52; between CSAH 40 and 

Edgewood Road). 


Motion by Commissioner Chaffee for final payment to Hardrives, Inc. in the 

amount of $20,445.16. Second bv Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 


'" 

6. Award Bid for Contract #1301 
County Engineer Mark LeBrun reported that bids were opened on April 29, 2013 
for Contract #1301 for SAP 058-611-013, located on CSAH 11, from County Line 
to CSAH 61. The engineer's estimate for the project was $2.6 million, bid from 
Tri-City Paving, Inc. was $2,197,377.47 (approximately 15% under proposed 
engineer's estimate). 

Motion by Commissioner Pangerl to award bid for Contract #1301 to Tri-City 
Paving, Inc. for SAP 058-611-013, $2,197,377.47 and authorize Board Chair and 
County Administrator to sign Contract. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. 

Motion carried 4-0. 


7. Award Bid for Contract #1302 
County Engineer Mark LeBrun reported that bids were opened on May 20, 2013 
for Contract #1302 for SAP 058-641-016, located on CSAH 41, from Aitkin 
CSAH 2 to 2.5 miles east. Four bids were submitted. The engineer's estimate for 
the project was $1.2 million, bid from North Pine Aggregate was $1,174,778.43 
(approximately 4% under proposed engineer's estimate). Paving is not included in 
this contract (to be discussed in future Transportation Committee Meeting). 

Motion by Commissioner Rossow to award bid for Contract # 1302 to North Pine 
Aggregate for SAP 058-641-016, $1,174,778.43 and authorize Board Chair and 
County Administrator to sign Contract. Second by Commissioner Hallan. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

8. Health and Human Services Director Position Recruitment 
County Administrator David Minke informed the board the deadline for 
submission of applications for the Health and Human Services Director position 
has closed with 19 applications submitted. Minke explained the proposed 
interview process with interviews to take place June 3, 2013. 

May 21. 2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners Page 6 of8 

http:1,174,778.43
http:1,174,778.43
http:2,197,377.47
http:2,197,377.47
http:20,445.16


9. Veteran's Service Officer Vacancy 
9A. Job Description 

County Administrator David Minke explained the Veteran's Service Officer job 
description has been revised to remove duties previously associated with the 
safety program, and reviewed the basic applicant qualifications necessary. The 
new description is based on a state model. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the Veteran's Service Officer job 
description. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

9B. Filling Position 
Commissioner Rossow commented Pine County has approximately 3,000 
veterans and inquired as to a timeframe for filling the position. Minke 
explained that the Veterans Service Officer position will be advertised for three 
weeks and contemplated interviews 4-5 weeks from now. Minke indicated he 
will be meeting with a State Veterans Services Department field officer this 
week. They anticipate interim staffing needs to be 2-3 days per week. 

Motion by Commissioner Panged to approve the filling of the Veteran's Service 
Officer position. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

10.Commissioner Updates 
None. 

11.0ther 
Pine County resident Dave Ostenson asked for comment from the Board on the 
NLX. Commissioner Panged requested that the NLX be placed on the June 18, 
2013 board agenda for discussion. 

12.Upcoming Meetings 
a. 	 Technology Committee Meeting, Tuesday, May 21, 2013,8:30 a.m., 

Commissioner Conference Room, Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, 
Minnesota. 

h. 	 Pine County Board Meeting, Tuesday, May 21, 2013 10:00 a.m., 
Boardroom, Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

c. 	 Pine County Health and Human Services Meetings, Tuesday, May 21, 
2013, to commence after Pine County Board Meeting, Boardroom, Pine 
County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

d. 	 Highway 70 Road Tour, May 24, 2013, 10:00 a.m., Rock Creek City Hall. 
e. 	 Committee of the Whole - Economic Development, June 4, 2013, 10:00 

a.m., Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

Page 7 of8May 21.2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 



f. Special Personnel Committee Meeting, Tuesday, June 4, 2013, 8:00 a.m., 
Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

g. 	 Pine County Board Meeting, Tuesday, June 4, 2013, 1 :00 p.m., Public 
Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

h. 	 Personnel Committee Meeting, Tuesday, June 11,2013,8:00 a.m., 
Hinckley City Hall. 

1. 	 Facilities Committee Meeting, Tuesday, June 18,2013, to commence 
after Health and Human Services Meeting, Commissioner Conference 
Room, Pine City, Minnesota. 

Recess called at 12:00 p.m. 

Reconvened at 12:15 p.m. 

Motion by Commissioner Rossow to close the meeting to discuss pending 
litigation relating to a tax forfeited property sale. Second by Commissioner 
Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Present at the closed meeting: Chair Hallan; Commissioners Chaffee, Pangerl, 
Rossow; Attorney Carlson; Auditor Clemmer; and Administrator Minke. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to open the meeting. Second by Commissioner 
Panger!. Motion carried 4-0. The meeting was opened at 12:45 p.m. 

13.Adjourn 
With no further business, Chair Hallan adjourned the county board meeting at 
12:45 p.m. The next regular meeting of the county board is scheduled for June 4, 
2013 at 1 :00 p.m. at the Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

David J. Minke, Administrator Stephen M. Hallan, Chair 

Clerk to County Board Board of Commissioners 


May 21. 2013 Full Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 	 Page 80f8 



SUMMARY 

OF 


MINUTES OF PINE COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, May 21, 2013, 10:00 a.m. 

Boardroom, Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota 


Chair Hal1an called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Present were Commissioners 
Mitch Pangerl, Steve Chaffee, and Curt Rossow. Also present were County Attorney 
John Carlson and County Administrator David Minke. 

The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 

Chair Ha1lan called for a moment of silence in honor of Veterans Service Officer Dean 
Dronen who passed away May 15,2013. 

Chair Hallan called for public comment. The following expressed their opposition of the 
Northern Lights Express: Dave Ostenson, Scott Martin, Al Wolter, Kathy Moris, Laura 
McKenzie, Patrice DeGray, Ben Wiener, Carolyn Stivers, Christine Jackson. 

Commissioner Chaffee moved to approve the amended agenda. Second by 
Commissioner Pangerl. Motion carried 4-0. 

Commissioner Pangerl moved to approve the Minutes of the May 7, 2013 board meeting 
and Summary for pUblication. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Minutes ofBoards, Committees and Correspondence 
Pine County Soil & Water Conservation District Board Meeting Minutes-Apr. 4, 2013 
East Central Regional Library Board Minutes April 8,2013 

Commissioner Pangerl moved to acknowledge the Minutes of Boards, Committees and 
Correspondence. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Commissioner Chaffee moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Second by 
Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

Approve April, 2013 Cash Balance. 

Applications for Abatement: 
Approve: 

a. Gregory Clark, 27966 Oak Bend Way, Sturgeon Lake 
b. Eunice Olson, 38396 Warloe Road, Moose Lake 

May 21. 2013 Summary of Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners Page J of5 



c. 	 Marlen & Annette Anderson, 94132 Partridge Rd. No., Sturgeon Lake 
d. 	 Western Bank, 608 Fire Monument Rd., Hinckley 
e. 	 Steve & Lisa Hosna, 45714 Dove Rd., Hinckley 

Approve application for Pokegama Lake Association to conduct Minnesota lawful 
gambling at Beroun Saloon, 24715 Main St., Beroun. 

Accept $2,500 donation from Wal-Mart Foundation and designate to the Pine 
County Sheriff's Office K-9 program. 

Accept $2,500 donation from Wal-Mart Foundation. 

Sheriff Cole presented the following awards: 

Dispatcher Marcella Danielson: Award ofMerit 

Office Manager Denise Baran: Award of Commendation 

Chief Deputy Steve Blackwell: Medal ofMerit 


Approve County Administrator David Minke to attend the Economic Development 
Association of Minnesota summer conference. Registration $395; lodging, $295; 
mileage, $98; total cost: $788. 

Approve the hiring of 4-H Summer Assistant Jessica Fischer, effective June 3, 
2013, $11.62 per hour, grade A13, step 1 (at a cost not to exceed $4,000). 

Approve the hiring of part-time Corrections Officers Sara Anderson, effective 
May 23,2013, pending completion of pre-employment screenings, $16.04 per 
hour, B-23. 

Approve the hiring of part-time Corrections Officers Michael Ledin, effective May 
23,2013, pending completion of pre-employment screenings, $16.04 per hour, 
B-23. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
The Personnel Committee met on May 14,2013 and made the following 

recommendations: 

A. Sheriff's Office 

• 	 Accept the resignation of Deputy Sheriff Noah Heiller, effective May 11, 2013. 
• 	 Authorize promotion of two part-time deputy sheriffs to full-time. 
• 	 Authorize the backfill of two full-time deputy sheriff positions. 
• 	 RatifY the Pine County Sheriff's Office sworn peace officers staffing level for 

2013 and 2014 at 31. 

A special Personnel Committee meeting is scheduled for June 4, 2013, 8:00 
a.m., Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

May 21. 2013 Summary of Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 	 20f5 



Motion by Commissioner Rossow to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

B. Highway Department 
• 	 Accept the retirement of Highway Maintenance Worker Greg Museus, 

effective May 3,2013, and authorize internal replacement and external 
backfill. 

• 	 Authorize the transfer of Maintenance Engineer Shawn Linnell to previous 
position of Engineer Technician III, effective May 27, 2013. Maintenance 
Engineer position will remain vacant. 

• 	 Authorize termination of probationary employee effective May 24, 2013. 
• 	 Authorize internal advertisement for Highway Maintenance Supervisor, 

Sandstone. 
• 	 Authorize advertising for (2) vacant highway maintenance workers prior to 

August 1,2013. 

Motion by Commissioner Rossow to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee. Second by Commissioner Hallan. Motion carried 4-0. 

c. Land and Zoning Department 
County Administrator David Minke provided an overview of the reorganizational 
structure of the Land and Zoning Department: 

• 	 County forester: report to county auditor. 
• 	 Creation of Land Services Director position and promote Kelly Schroeder to 

position. 
• 	 Eliminate Land & Zoning Administrator position. 
• 	 Creation of Senior Environmental Technician/Zoning Administrator 

position- to report to Land Services Director. 
• 	 Eliminate one of two Environmental Technician positions (opportunity for 

promotion) remaining technician 
• 	 Creation of Senior Appraiser position. 
• 	 Reclassification of deputy assessor. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

May 21. 2013 Summary of Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 	 Page 3 of5 



D. Administrator's Office 
• 	 Approve six month probationary period performance pay increase for 

Administrative Assistant Debbie Gray from $15.12 per hour to $16.87 per 
hour effective May 9,2013. 

E. IT Supervisor Job Description 
• 	 Approve IT Supervisor job description. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee as to performance pay increase for Debbie Gray and 
approval of IT Supervisor job description. Second by Commissioner Rossow. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve Resolution 2013-21 -- Authorization 
for East Central Solid Waste Commission Updating and Submission of Solid 
Waste Management Plan. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Second by 
Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee for final payment to Hardrives, Inc. in the 
amount of$20,445.16. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Pangerl to award bid for Contract #1301 to Tri-City 
Paving, Inc. for SAP 058-611-013, $2,197,377.47. Second by Commissioner 
Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Rossow to award bid for Contract #1302 to North Pine 
Aggregate for SAP 058-641-016, $1,174,778.43. Second by Commissioner 
Hall an. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the Veteran's Service Officer job 
description. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Pangerl to approve the filling of the Veteran's Service 
Officer position. Second by Commissioner Rossow. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Rossow to close the meeting to discuss pending 
litigation relating to a tax forfeited property sale. Second by Commissioner 
Chaffee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to open the meeting. Second by Commissioner 
Pangerl. Motion carried 4-0. The meeting was opened at 12:45 p.m. 

May 21. 2013 Summary of Board Minutes -- Pine County Board or Commissioners 	 Page 4 of5 

http:1,174,778.43
http:2,197,377.47
http:of$20,445.16


With no further business, Chair Hallan adjourned the county board meeting at 
12:45 p.m. The next regular meeting of the county board is scheduled for June 4, 
2013 at 1 :00 p.m. at the Public Health Building, Sandstone, Minnesota. 

David J. Minke, Administrator Stephen M. Hallan, Chair 

Clerk to County Board Board of Commissioners 


The full text of the board's Minutes are available at the County Administrator's 
Office and the county's website (\\'Ww.co.pine.mn.us). Copies may also be requested 
from the administrator's office. 

Page 5 of5May 21. 2013 Summary of Board Minutes -- Pine County Board of Commissioners 

http:Ww.co.pine.mn.us


PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTtON 

Board Date: 

June 4.2013 

Auditor/Treasurer 

I 

. :'O! 3 Disbursements 

Board ,\ctioD Requested: <Attach additional ragc~ ifm:ed\:dl 

Supporling Documellts: Auach~1.! None 



CAIIIY H'I***** Pine County ***** H"i"L"fCl~t n)l t~ll 
5/29/13 120JPM 

DISBURSEMENTS JOURNAl. REPORT Sp('cHk D;,tf:~: I !20 13 0:; ill / ~!O 1 ] Pa~w ·Hi 

RECAP BY n lND 

lHCAl' BV 1'\'1'1. 

H!ND 

1:1 

2? 
:n 
7fl 

flO 

HI' 
8~ 

I 'PI 

AMOlINT 
!i54./' 'iA~ 

HlI.9:'8.90 
!nr, os 

5,90~OO 

;"l01.92444 

26'140 . .70 

2.121 :nO.A1 

29,11 11.0';1 

3.7~~.024 C1"l 

,I\MOnllJ'l 
:1.)' :M,Ol.t 9] 

:1 7 'Iii ,07·1 9:'j 

NAME 
I;!cNFR\! RJ~I.~'Flc FHNlJ 
IW,\[} ,flt. !m!llI;F HIND 

lA1\;1l M·\\,V;nllNT n!~!) 

(1 11 INI Y R,,!1 RO.\!l\FI1WHU! Y 

r;PJlflJ' HFAll1l IN'; l'flNIi !·'I'I(;f'·)\ 

t <'!.lNn U)f]fc [JONS ·v;pJ(, jT~!> 

L\\r<; .'NO rfll.J\! '111'<; V;Pi( r n 'Nfl 

ONTR\I f'fli'(, 1.\<;K nw,n\,;UHY! 
'[ OIJl111s\:lun;f'nH'llt<;. 

NA'IF 
\1'11 

hl.!!l nj~lml ~t'11l"!1I'; 

2nto 

http:HlI.9:'8.90


PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 


Requestcd Board Date: 

June 2013 

Auditor/Treasurer 


rPlC41SC (. 
J5 Min. 

1 hom 

i:l nC'UClnent· 
~~8 I.; 

heOl for Di~U$sjOl1: 

,Ar'rn'icul ion 
( PIi l'IiI1. ~~:J-'/-:'" UOr.. , !1a1' 2(;/: 
Brian Ii [Jehro "'cdI'm ~3 (ili3 {I(lIJpar ]OL & 1013 

Board Action Rt'qUl'!ltcd: (Attu(;h additionul page~ it'm::~dcd! 

Supporting Do.:uments; f\tta.:i1ed 1'\ one 



Application for Local-Option Disaster Abatements and Credits 




__ 

APPLICATION FOR ABATEMENT· GENERAL FORM 
(M ,5 375.192} 

Abatement # ~~~_L::::. 

DATE: For Taxes Levied In: 
~-.-~..~"-~ 

And Payable 

Please Pnnt Or Type 

Number 

T mvnship/Crty: 

Tot,i. 

r'>JOTE LlnnesotB Statutes 19B8, Sect:::>'] (;:)g ~ 1, 
requlrec or ault,onzBC] 

rnilke:5 <iny statement as to maten~I' 'Nrlii::h tie maker of tht statement know;:, is fa's€' 
may bB sentenced. unless otnervvise ::mJvided lavv for f:1Drt:; lh;:m Of'l€': year or to 

ia'.'v to De macie a~, a basIs of IrnOO~lr{; any tax or i:'!,,;;seS$menL 

Pne 



APPLICATION FOR ABATEMENT - GENERAL FORM 
(MS 375192i 

DATE: 

Abatement # ..:;-M-""-"'-"'----.fr--

For Taxes Levied In _":_'---~:"..._." 
And Payable In: 

Please Print Or Type 

\" (' 



PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTtON 

Regular Ag.:nda June 4.2013 
f:st:rnatcd Time: (P/CdSC ('in'le) 

I(l ~\Jljn, J 5 tv'lin, 
! l!i1r: l1',:!"\h~~ 

30 r\1i1l 45 \:1 ill, hom 

AuditorlTreasurer 

Item fur Discussion: 

.A{JI}/icdtlonJiJr E~Y~rnr'{ r\:rrnif [fIt' i\11\' ~\okul t'.:Jn1l'; ~.,.j:"'_·l;1j::.:ia!iun if) ~Yofuiuc! ;\fjnne/'o'ut{{ i(lVI/U/ 
galnhling on .dugU5{ }l. ::{)i..~ (f[ /92'0/ ffu.fhl/arg:/ ~4L'rC5 S~t<i~air r~nc ('ity r('lu;'1?J[h\"IUJJUJ {\,('/;/ 

aom'd Actioll Requested: (/\.uach additional page~; iln.::cdt!dr 



(or~v? l"rU5 certrh::hj{" t<nust 
·:)f 5tilte, BUSlne:~s, 5f\~·\ljce~~ C)-~V 

IRS inc:om~ tal< exemption [501(<:)) letter In your organization's naMfL 

__ IRS w AfflH"'te of national, statewfde, or int$f'natfonCtI pal"ent nonprofit or-ganizalion rcharter) 
Pdre:-~ ,JU"U, :op,e;:. both ~tH2' 'oliowlng 

GAMBLING PREMISES INFORMA nON 

"Gambling eqlJl.pment 

ilc.:>nSetl .::liSrntrutor 1(. www,gcb.state.IDn.!/S an:! on DIstributors 

t'lt, WHO'S WHO? UST OF L1CEN5EES. cal, 

MIN 

LG220 Application for Exempt Permit 
.lJ,f Application fee (m;m refundabh() 

NONPROfIT STATUS 
Attach a copy Qf ONE of the kitlowinQ for proof of nonprofIt status. 

Nonprofit Artieie'.;, of Im:orparation OR iii current Certifrarte of Good Standmg. 

\ 

) 
l 



LOCAL UNIT OF GOVERNMENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

CITV APPROVAL 
for a gambling premises 
located within citv bmils 

Th(A aD0hc.at"o~, t~ acknowledgt:?d V¥lfh 

~Jen:o·:.L and aHow":; tht:- E:'»D3nj tG 

fG:-~. j .:,;"" i it-l'-';~ CIty L 

lG220 Application for Exempt Permit 

COUNTY APPROVAL 

for a gambting premises 


located in a township 


fO'(, 1f",';tt1 cf J.e (j3:'~ w.jr::in~ 

[!,''{d a~k.)w·: Utt: !'10tln~ t{'\ ppr,n:- ntrt"t"

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER1S SIGNATURE 


Finan!:,.1 rePOrt <!II''': recordkeepi.ng ytlQl.m"ed 
hna:noai r tl::!'p.or1 tOfttl dr-ild Wi:! tJ-C' $~~lt 'N~tti 'y'(J1f' 

• €It ~arri:/!!nQ COf'30CtCCJ cn on~,~ tJih; 
~,H:~nr~:it. Ql'" 1.1'5(' tne CHlI!nC ~Hi' ~';; forn, ('h.'~liJ,f)blt' r"I~ 

un'~: o;)P;,I!.t(-i'1t~nr~ r<f"C~Hrit!D!t onf~ (11 (Y-),)~"(,:, fd~fk t1Ci'Pr'llrl(,~~< 

-conn uctec Oi"'1 t!){o ~aryH; 



PINE COlf~TY REQlJEST FOR 


BOA.RD ACTION 


Regular Agenda 
b,aimated Tim,;: (P!L',L\'C ( 'II'(:!<'} 

."(1 \'iin. ·15 [I.'lin I hour 

Fm:k'irr:d Land inii,ll Luann F imdicke 

Board Action Requt~tcd: i/\ttacb additlonai pages if 

Approve Resolution. 

SUPPN1!11f. nCl":Hm..-ms' Attached NOlle 



------

RESOLunON a,o\3-.~a... 

WHEREAS, Luann F. Imdieke. the former owner. has made and filed an 
application with the County Auditor for the: repurchase of hereinafter described 
parcel of tax forfeited land, in accordance with the provIsions of Minnesota Statutes 
1945, Section 282.241, as amended which land IS situated in the County of Pme 
Minnesota, and described as foiiows, to-Wit 

West 330 feet of the 693 feet the South 691.84 feet of North Half of the 
Northwest Quarter (N1 of N\1\f1 of Section Five , TownshIp Forty-one (41 
Range Twenty (20) that part of Taylor Traii of Taylor's Birch Acres according to the 
plat thereof on fHe and of record in the office of the County Recorder. Pine County 
Minnesota, Subject to easements, covenants. restrictIOns and reservations of record ff 
any 

DID # 030035.004 

and WHEREAS, applicant has submltted the required application fa~ repurchase to 
the Pine County Auditor 

and 

and VVHEREAS, this Board is the opInion that sa~d appl!cation should be granted for 
such reasons, 

NOW THEREFORE n- RESOLVED, thatthe application of Luann F. Imdleke, 
for the repurchase of the above described parce: tax forfeited land be and the same 
is hereby granted and the County Auditor is hereby authorized and directed permit 
such repurchase according the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1945. Section 
282241, as amended. 

Dated at Sandstone, Minnesota, this 4u' day m June. 2013. 

Attest: 	 ChaIrman. Board of County Comm!SSloners 
Pine County, Minnesota 

County Auditor 



PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 


and 
: }'iskul' schuu': h(,~dl 

A uditor/Treasurer 


Item for Discussiun: 



AUO/TOR'S SUBOIViSION E:.h or S. E.~ OF" 


s.E.xor se:c:. J9.T.4lP4. R .. ISW. 


~-Dc5HiO[; 
i ..d)''! 

JI 
) 





PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 


Requested Board Date: Consent Agenda (Please Circle) 

June 4, 2013 Regu lar Agenda 
t.~!!t!tl:m:n·!f1e: (Please Circle) 

10 Min. IS Min. 

30 Min. 45 Min. I hour 

Department Requesting Action: 

Administration S--)J-Ij 


Date 

Over the last year or so, representatives from Carlton, Pine, and Chisago 
counties have been meeting to discuss the use of the Old Hwy. 61 theme to 
develop a marketing strategy. The Onanegozie RC&D Council has provided 
staff support to the initiative. 

The planning group has applied to the Initiative Foundation for a $4,000 grant to 
facilitate three meetings of the Chambers of Commerce, local government 
officials, and other interested parties. The grant requires a 1 : 1 match. The 
funding plan is to request a contribution of $500 from each of the three counties 
and the remaining $500 would be contributed by other organizations. 

This project represents an opportunity to support local retail and tourism 
businesses along the Hwy. 61 corridor. 

Board Action Requested: (Attach additional pages if needed) 

Approve a contribution of up to $500, contingent upon grant award, to the 
Rediscover Old Hwy. 61 Project. This is an economic development project so 
the funds could come from the 2012 $7,500 donation from the Mille Lacs Band, 
or from the Administrator's budget. 

Supporting Documents: Attached: Letter of Support 



PINE COUNTY 
PINE COUNTY 
MIN:N:&:SO'l'A 

635 Northridge Drive NW Commissioners 
Pine City, MN 55063 Steve Hallan Disi. 1 
320-591-1621 Mitch Pangerl Dist. 2 
1-800-450-7463 Ext. 1620 Steve Chaffee Dist. 3 
Fax: 320-591-1628 Curt Rossow Dist. 4 

Vacant Dist. 5 

May 29, 2013 

Grant Review Committee 
Initiative Foundation 
405 First Street SE 
Little Falls, MN 56345 

I am writing this letter of support of the Rediscover Old Hwy 61 project. The project is 
supported by the county and the county administrator has been a member of the project planning 
board. 

Prior to the interstate highway system, highways such as Hwy. 61 were integral in 
sustaining commerce. Today, although not as vital to interstate commerce, the old U.S. highway 
system is the main stay of much of greater Minnesota. In Pine County, Hwy. 61 serves as a 
"main street" running through six cities. This project will strengthen the link between these 
communities and provide a format for small business owners to share resources in attracting new 
customers to their businesses. 

I respectfully request that the Initiative Foundation award the grant whieh will strengthen 
small businesses in small-town Minnesota. 

Sincerely, 

~J~>tJ----
Stephen M. Hallan, Chair 
Pine County Board of Commissioners 

SMH/dg 

.' 




PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 


Requested Board Date: Consent Agenda (Please Circle) 

June 4, 2013 Regular Agenda 
Estimated Time: ~~e~ Circle) 

10 Mil. 15 Min. 
Time Ileeded 

• 30 Min. 45 Min. 1 hour 

Department Requesting Action: 
Assessor 

Consider approval and awarding oftitle and closing services for properties involved in the 2012~2013 
Flood Mitigation Buyout Progl'am to Ledin & Hofstad. 

Board Action Requested: (Attach additional pages if needed) 

Supporting Documents: A@ed ~ne 



BACKGROUND: 

Work is proceeding in preparing to acquire certain properties significantly damaged by the June 2012 

Floods. As of this date, Grant funding is in place for those properties being acquired 100% with DNR 

resources and the HSEM funding is expected to be in place in the near future, subject to the updating of 

the County's Flood mitigation plan. Up to 43 properties have indicated an ongoing interest in 

participating in the buyout program. 

The next step in the process is to work with impacted property owners to obtain signed purchase 

agreements for the properties being acquired. The initial effort will be focused on those being acquired 

with DNR resources because the funding is in place. 

To assist in this process, request for proposals were sent out to five Title and Closing Service Companies 

and also published in our official newspaper. Proposals were received from two local firms interested in 

providing Title Service and Closing assistance. Proposals were received from: 

Total potential cost if all properties are purchased 

With Title Insurance Without Title Insurance 

Ledin & Hofstad (Pine City) $82,785.64 $63,152.13 

Signature Closing & Title, Inc. $97,344.25 na 

Each firm submitted specific fees for each parcel potentially participating in this buyout program. This 

fee will be paid as properties are purchased. The costs for these services have been included in the DNR 

and HSEM grants. 

As a law firm, Ledin &H ofstad also represents several local municipalities and townships. Attorney 

Kevin Hofstad was requested to provide a proposal for ancillary legal services, if found necessary, as part 

of these real estate transactions. His hourly rate is $200. His services will be kept to a minimum and 

would also be funded through the grant fund programs. 

As part of this acquisition process, title issues will need to be resolved prior to purchasing. Because of 

this, and because all properties will be owned by the local jurisdictions which they are located, title 

insurance will not be necessary. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the proposal submitted by Ledin & Hofstad for 

providing Title and Closing services, without title insurance, be approved by the Board. 

http:97,344.25
http:63,152.13
http:82,785.64


REQU.EST FOR PROPOSALS 

Property Title and Closing Services 


Pine County, Minnesota 


Pine County, Minnesota is accepting proposals for Property Closing Services 

SEALED PROPOSALS MUST BE DELIVERED TO TIlE COUNTY ADMIJ'."]STRATOR'S OFFICE 
NO LATER THAN 1:00 P.M., May 23, 2013. 

Preposais must be sealed and marked: 
Propel'ty Closing Services RFP 
County Administrators Office 
635 Northridge Dr., Suite 200 
Pine City, MN 55063 

GENERAL 
El. Proposals must be received by the date and time specified. Proposals received ailel' the specified date and 
time w.i11 not be act!epted. 
b. Only SEALED proposals will be accepted. Fax or emailed proposals will not be accepted. 
c. All submittals in response to this request become public record and subject to public inspection. 
d. All materials submitted in respollSe to this request become the property of the County. 
e. Expenses incurred in preparation, pre-bid visits/meetings, submission, and any other wOl'k done in response 
to this RFP is the responsibiHty of the bidder and will not be :reimbursed by the COllUty. 
f. By submitting this proposal, the proposer certifies that he/she has not acted in collusion "Nith any other 
proposer or potential proposer. 
g. Proposals shall be valid for a period ofat least sixty (30) days from due date. 
h. All work must be completed by August 16.2013. 

L Questions should be addressed to Matt Fulton, Flood Coordinator at Matt.Fulton@co.pme.nin.us 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

In June, 2012, significant flooding occutred within the Kettle, Willow and Moosehorn Rivers in Pine County. 
Numerous properties sustained significant and substantial damage as a result ofthe flooding, A federal 
emergency declaration was appr~ved in 2012. nle Pine County Board of Commissioners approved its 
participation in a Voluntary Comprehensive Flood Mitigation Program involving emergency funding provided 
by the Minnesota Department ofNatural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Homeland Security Emergency 
Mitigation program. (HSEM). 
The program invo]ves the acquisition of up to 43 properties substantially damaged by floodwaters. The 
program is voluntary, althou.gb ove:r 80% of all property ov,'1lers have currontly indicated theil' desire to 
participate in the propel1y buyout program, The intent is to complete all acquisition activities by Augusl16, 
2013. The properties will be purchased by the city or l'OWDsbipiliey are located in. After a,c,quisition, all ' 
struc:tures will be demolished and the properties wlll be kept as public open space through deed restdctious. 

REQUEST 
Pine County is- interested in receiving proposals from interested Title Companies for as..<risting in the 
acquisition/closing pl'Ocess for tbe properties involved in the buyout program, TIle County's intention is to 
select and work with one Title Company that can best meet the neoosof the County and this program, although 
it reserves the right to reject all proposal~.feceived, The proposal needs to d,escribe the services to be provided 

http:althou.gb
mailto:Matt.Fulton@co.pme.nin.us


Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd. ;l20-629-7537 
Company Name Telephone Number 

539 Main Street Soutb kevinh@ledinaudhofstad.com 
Mailing Address Email Address 

KC;)vin Hofstad.Attorney 
idders Namelritle 

~ I----+-.!<..:..!::~=="--~,;;r_.c..=~.---i
Authorized Signatnre 

as well as the costs associated with each activity. The services provided should include all services necessru:y 

to identity current liens against the property and to ensure clean title folloVl.~ng tbe transaction that is 

appropriately recorded in the County Recorder's Office. 

The ])otential properties to be acquired are identified on Attachment A. The prices shown on the attachment 


should be considered the purc1wse price and all title work fees should be based 011 these prices. 

Each proposer needs the capability to provide closing services in the Twin Cities metro area arld in Pine 

County. 


T.he Proposals should clearly identify the proposed specific work activities to be completed and the related 

costs. This activity should include all abstract. assessment searches, closing fees, title exam, name search, plat 

drawing, and recording fees, as well as any other fees, including legal reviews and title insurance. The 

proposal should indicate the specific title and closing fees for each property on Attachment A. The overall fees 

should also be identified on Attachment B as provided.. 


PROPOSAL FORMAT 

Proposals shall be submitted in the format provided .on Attachment A and Atiaohrnent B 


EVALUATION CRITERIA . 

Evaluation ~11 be based on, but not limited to, the fol1ow:ing criteria (not necessarily in priority order): 

Pricing: Although a concern. the proposal(s) with the most favorable pricing will not necessaJily be awarded 

the contract( s). 

Qualifications: Pl'Oposer has met the terms, criteria, qualifications, etc. that are viewed to be llecessary and or 

essential components of this proposal in the opinion of the evaluation committee. 

Reputation: Information acquil:ed through references and o:ther available sources 

Experienec: How many years the company and key personnel have worked with similar projects. 

Project Understanding: Evidence proposer understands the countis needs. 


The evaluation may include an interview or requests for additional information Vvith those proposers deemed 

most competitive. 


SIGNATURES 

The undersiglled~ being familiar with the oonditions and instructions, hereby proposes to provide services (including all 
associated experisoo} in accordance with tho requirements stipulated. 

Dated this r:2tf1-... day of_Mlf/ ........................~ Year 2.rt8 




ATTACHMENT A: Identification of Eligible Parcels and Purchase amounts 

Proposal: Please identify the closing fees for each of the identified properties below and 
place the overall proposed total fees on Attachment B. 

Because there is still some uncertainty-about which properties will ultimately participate in the 
voluntary buyout program, the fees identified below will be the amount paid to the successful 
Title Company for that particular property. 

Parcel 
Number 

I 	 1 


I 	 2 


! 	 3 


I 4 


I 5 


I 6 


I 7 


I 8 


I 9 


j 10 

11
I 

I 12 


I 13 

14
I 

I 15 

[ 16 


I 17 


I 	 18 

19
I 

I 	 20 


21
I 
I 	 22 


23
I 
24I 

I 25 


I 26 


I 27 


I 28 


I 29 


I 30 


I 31 


I 32 


I 33 


I 	 34 


I 	 35 


.-~~ 

ITotal Value Property Address Jurisdiction Total Closing Fee 
$183,260 2750 Central Avenue Kettle River Twp S.:l. 640.76 
$2.37,820 79394 Long Lake Rd Kettle RIver Twp I ~820!81 

$72,600 2994 Farm to Market Rd Sturgeon lake City ! ~i,2.75.58 ~ 
$76,890 3015 Farm to Market Rd Sturgeon lake City I ~1,289.74 

$119,350 7150 Bald Eagle Ln Rutledge City S1429.86 I 
$121,770 · 7166 Bald Eagle Ln 

.. _ Rutledge City $1437.84 

$127,110 7210 Bald Eagle Ln Rutledge City ~11457.44 

$140,910 7218 Bald Eagle Ln ~utledge City Sl,SOl.OO 
... 

$147,950 i 7226 Bald Eagle Ln Rutledge City I lli24.24 
$136,070 · 7230 Bald Eagle In Rutledge City ~i!485.03 
$173,360 ·7254 Bald Eagle Lane Rutledge City ~L6.08.09 

$196.350 ' 7288 Bald Eagle In 
~ 

I Rutledge CIty ~11683.96 

$45,980 72XK Bald Eagle In ! Rutledge CIty 
-

$1,187.73 
..-~---.-! .

$235,180 ..14080 County Hwy 61 • Kettle River Twp $1,812.Q9 
.-~ .. 

___~197,450 74290 County Hwy 61 - I Kettle River Twp ~1,687.59 

$156,970 76782 Debbie Ridge Rd I Ke"le River'rwp $1,554:00 
~--

$231,110 • 8019 Willow St I .willow River City $l,79g.66 

$51,92~ I 8080 WilloW St Willow River City ~1!2Q7.34 I 
~. 

$106,700 ~_ 80g1 Willow St I Kettle River Twp ~1,38§.U . ___1 

$29,!260 . 8085 WTllow St • Willow RII,er City $1,132.56 , 
·1 

$140,030 8092 WilloW 51 : Willow Rlv~r City SJ....A98.09 

$5SA10 8116Wmow51 Willow River city ~b228.75 

$105,490 8129 Willow 51 Willow River City i i!,384.12 

$126,610 . 87197 Kettle Shores Loop Sturgeon Lake TWp Slg4S3.81 

$190,900 87311 I'eHle Shores Loop Sturgeon Lake Twp ~666.p 

$84.,590 • 8759 Cathedral Pines Dr _Stu_rgeon la~e CIty ~1,315.15 

$184,690 8761 Cathedral Pines Dr '.. Stu rgeon Lake Clt~ Sl!64S.4~ 

$168,630 8765 Cathedral Pines Dr Stul'Beon lake City aS92.48 I 
$149,600 ani Cathedrnl Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake City Sl.Ji29 168 I 

$145,420 I 8771 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake City ~!2ill~ 
~ 

... 

~1!519.39 I$168,300 • 8719 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake CItV .
$115,060 I 8785 cathedral Pines' Dr Sturgeon lake City ~1,415.70 i 

8793 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon 'Lake CIty ~1,306.07 
...~$81/84~,,; 

__~g05,160 ff197 Cathedral Pines Dr • Sturgeon Lake City SlI38~,Of}. 

$162,250 8801 Cathedral Pines Or Sturceon Lake City : $1571.43--... 



I . 36 


I 37 


I 38 


I 39 

f 40 

I 41 


I 42 


I 43 


1 Total 

$31;460 I 
 8811 cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeol1 l.ake Ci!i' ~1,139.82 

$188,980 I 
 882.5 Clthefll'al Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake Cfty S~,659.63 
'$141,900 88!13'Catheflral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake City .s~04.27 


$195,283 ~1,680.43I 8843~Cathedral Pines Dr StU!l80n Lake City 

$95,92.0 8859 Cathedral Pines Dr I Sturgeon Lake CIty $1,352.54 

$43,450 8875 cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake Clty , Sl,179.39. 

8879 Cathedral Pmes Dr Sturgeon Lake Clty m$l,505.36'$142,230 
-~-

$;11183.02$44,550 Sturgeon Lake City8895 Cathedral Pines Dr 

I $5,659,423 S63J2lli 

http:11183.02
http:m$l,505.36
http:Sl,179.39
http:1,352.54
http:1,680.43
http:S~,659.63
http:1,139.82


ATTACHMENT B: Proposal Form 

.Pleaae use the following form to identify the fees associated with your services under this 
program. 

Company Name: Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd. 

Address: 539 Main Street South, Pine City. MN 56063 

Contact Person: Kevin A. Hofstad! Attorney Phone:320-629-7537 

Email Address:kevinh@ledinandhofstad.com 

FEES 

The totat fees to be cha·rged for title and closing services for all properties Identified on 
Attachment A is: 

Total Fees: $63,15?13 

Please verify the services that will be provided: 

Includes: ves 

Abstracting _x_ 

Closing Worksheets _x_ 

Asae"sement Search _x_ 

Closing Fee _x_ 

Titie Exam 
 ~-
Name Search _x_ 

Plat Drawing _x_ 

Recording Fees _x_ 

Legal review _x_ 

TitJe Insurance 


I Wire Services _x_ 
l' 

Other: Title Issues _x_ Describe:Non-normal title issues I 
~ Other: RE Taxes _x_ Oescribe:Not included In bid 

1: 
Proposed Closing Locations 

Pine County Location: Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd. 


Twin Cities Location __________~__________- ___~ 

Please provide any additional information describing fees and/or services that you would 
provide und&r this contract:. 

mailto:Address:kevinh@ledinandhofstad.com


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Property Title and Closing Services 


Pine County, Minnesota 


Pine COlDILy. Minnesota: 18 accepting proposals for Property Closing Services;;;-------------- 

SEALED PROPOSALS MlJST BE DELIVERED TO THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S OFFICE 

NO LATER THAN 1:00 P.M., May 23, 2013. 


Proposals must be sealed and marked: 

Property Closing Services RPP 

County Administrators Office 

635 Northridge Dr., Suite 200 ' 

Pine City, MN 55063 


GENERAl. 
a. Proposals must be received bX the date and time specified. Proposals received after the specified date and 

time will not be accepted. 

b. Only SEALED proposals will be accepted. Fax or emailed proposals will not be accepted. 
c. All submittals in response to this request become public record and subject to public inspection. 

d, All materials submitted in response to this request become the property oftbe County. 

e. Expenses incurred in preparution, pte-bid visits/meetings, submission, and any other work done in response 

to this RFP is the responsibility ofthe bidder and will not be reimbul'sed by 1he County. 

f. By submitting this proposal, the proposer certifies that he/she has not acted in collusion with any other 

proposer Of potential proposer. 

g. Proposals shall be valid for a period of at least sixty (30) days from due date. 
h. All work must be completed by August 16,2013. . 
i. Questions should be addressed to Matt Fulton, Flood Coordinator at Matt.Fulton@co.pine.n1l1.us 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

In June) 2012, significant flooding occurred within the Kettle, Willow and Moosehorn Rivers in Pine County. 

Nmnerous properties sustained significant ~Uld fmbstantial damage as are!rult of the flooding. A federal 

emergency declaration was approved in 2012 .. The Pine County Board of Commissioners approved its 

participation in a Volurrtary Comprehensive Flood Mitigation Program involving emergency funding provided 

by the Iv.linnesota Depar1ment ofNatu:raJ Resources (DNR) and the Federal Homeland Security Emergency 

Mitigatiol1 program. (HSEM). . 

The program involves the acquisition or up to 43 properties substantially damaged by floodwaters. The 

program is voluntary, although over 80% ofall property owners have currently indicated their desire to 


, ~cipate in the property buyout program. ' The intent is to complete aU acquisition activ:i~ies by August 16, 
2013. The properties will be purchased by the city ortO'\~mship 1hey are loC8ted in. After acquisition, all 
stmclures will be domolished and the properties will be kept as public open space through deed restrictions. 

REQUEST 

Pine County is interested in r~ceiving proposals from interested Title Compwrics for assisting in the 

acqui.sition/olosing process for the properties lnvolved in tbebuyout program. The County's intention is to 

select and work with one Title Company that can best meet the needs of the County and this program, although· 

it reserves the right to reject all proposals received. The proposal needs to describe the services to be provided 


mailto:Matt.Fulton@co.pine.n1l1.us


·. 
as well as the costs associated with each activity. The services,provided should indude all services necessary 
to identify current liens against the property and to ensure clean title following the transaction that is 
appropriately recorded in the COWlty Recorder's Office. 
The potential properties to be acquired are identified on Attachment A. The prices shown on the attachment 

should be considered the puxchase price and all title work fees should be based on these prices. 
Each proposer'needs the capability to provide closing services in the Twin Cities metro area and in Pine 
COWIty. 

The Proposals should clearly identify the proposed specific work activities to be the related 

costs. This activity should include all abstract, assessment searches, closing fees, title exam j nrone search, plat 

drawing, and recording fees, as well as any other fees, including legal reviews and title fusurarice., The 

proposal should indicate the specific title and closing fees for each property on Attachment A. The overaU fees 

should also be identified 011 Attachment B as provided.. 


PROPOSAL FORMAT 

Proposals Shall be submitted in the fonnat provided on Attachment A and Attachment B 


EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Evaluation will be based on, but not limited to. the following criteria (not necessarily in priority order): 

Pricing: Although a conce!~ the proposal{s) with the mOl>i favorable pricing will not necessarily be awarded 

the contract(s). 

Qualifications: Proposer has met the terms, criteria, q-J.alifications, etc. t:':tat are viewed to be necessa..1'Y and 01' 


essential components of this proposal in the opinion of the evaluation colDmittee. 

Reputation: Information acquired through ref('''fenccs and other available sources _ 

E:xpcrieJic0~ How mauyycars the company and key personnel have worked with similar Pl'ojects. 

Project Undcl'studiug: Evidence proposer understands the county's needs. 


The evaluation may include an interview or requests for additional infumwtion with those propmrers deemed 

most competitive. 


SIGNATURES 

The undersigned: being familiar with the condiiions and instru~tions, hereby pt'oposes to provide services (including all 
associated exp6IJBes) in accordance with the requirements stipulated_ 

Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd. n0--629-7537 
Company Name Telephone Number 

539 Main Street South kevinh@l~ill~dhof!>t@.com 
Mailing Address Email Address 

Pine City. NIN 55M3. Kevin A. Hofstad, Attorney 

CiZ;dC'Ao=-~:!L-___B_id_d_e_rs_N_ru_n_e/T_itIO 

Autbol'izod Signal 

Dated this ,i[ fi-aay of.LUY..I--Ll:4y'-+-___Yerud.Q'Lf 



ATTACHMENT A: Identification of Eligible Parcels and Purchase amounts 

Proposal: Please identify the closing fees for each of the identified.properties below and 
place the overall proposed tota] foGS on Attachment B. 

Because there is still some uncertainty about which properties wiJl ultimately participate in the 
voluntary buyout program, the fees identified below will be the amount paid to the successful 
Title Company for that particular prOI2~LrtY-. __..__ 

Parcel 
Number 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


5 


7 


B 

9 


10 

11 


12 

13 


14 

15 

1,6 


17 

18 

19 

20 


21 

22 

23 


24 

2S 

26 

27 


28 

29 

30 


31 

32 

33 

34. 

3S 

Total Value Property Address 
$183,260 2750 Central Avenue 

$237,820 79394 Long Lake Rd 

$72/6~ 2994 Farm to Market Rd 

$76,890 3015 Farm to Market Rd 

$119,350 7150 Bald Eagle Ln 

$121,170 7166 Bald Eagle Ln 

$127,710 7210 Bald Eagle Ln 

$140/910 7218 Bald Ea~lf! Ln 

$147,950 7aZ6 Bald Eagle Ln 

$136,070 7230 Bald Eagle Lo 

$17:1,360 1254 Bald Eagle Lane-
. $196,950 I 7288 Bald Eagle Ln 

$45,980 72XX Bald Eagle Ln 

$235,180 7;!O80 Co':'l1tv Hwy 61 

$197,450 74%90 CountV Hwy 61 

$156,970 76782 Debbie Ridge Rd 

$231,110 8D79 WIIIO'IIIf St 

~_J51,920 6080 WIIIO'IIIf St 

$106,700 8081 Willow St 

$29,260 80SS Willow St 

$140,030 8092. Willow 5t 

~Willow5t 
WlllowSt- 

$126,610 87137 Kettle Shores Loop 
~----~--...~-. 

$190,960 87311 Kettle Shores Loop
-, 

$84,590 • 8759 cathedntl Pines Dr. 

$184,690 8761 cath'edral Pines Dr 

$168,630 8765 cathedral Pines Dr 

$149,600 Eni cathedral .Pities Dr 

$145A20 8777 Ca·...~.. , PInes 'Dr 

$168,300 8779 Cothedral Pines Dr 

$115,060 8785 Cathedral Pines Dr 

$81,840 8793 Cilthedral Pines Or 

$105,160 87g'] Cathedral PJne~ Dr 

$162,250 8801 cathedral Pines Dr 

--I 

Jurisdiction Total Closing Fee 
Kettle River Twp I ~2,258.26 

Kettle River Twp I ~2,573.30 

Sturgeon Lake City ~1.537.S8 

Sturgeon Lake Crtv $l l 567.74 

R~tJed~e Chy ! SU~M.86 
Rutledge City Sl,879.34 

Rutledge City ~11918.44 

Rutledge City ~6.004.~5 

Rutledge City ~O50.24 

Rutledge City ~1,:915.28 

Rutll:!dge City ~2.200.59 

Rutledge City ~21333.96 

RutledGe Cltv ~11341.74 

Ket~ River Twp ~2,559.59 

Kettfe River Twp ~'.340.09 
Ketti .. River Twp .§2,104.00 

.~.~ 

WDlow River CIty ~2,536.16 

Willow River Clt~ $:1,385.34 

:_Kettle River Twp Sll ?80.86 

WJllow RlvElr ety Sl(22~ 

Willow River City S~,OO1.35 

Willow River ~ld34·Z~ ! 

WUlow RIver CIty Sl,773.62 i 
Sturgeon Lake Twp $1.911.56 

Sturgeon Lake Twp $_230l.17 i 

Sturgeon Lake City ~£~1}. 
• Sturgeon La,ke City ~2,265.48 

" Sturgeon Lake City $.21122.48 
. Sturgeon Lake CI~y $.~.,Q62.~8 

Sturgeon Lake City $2,035.39 

Lake CIty S2.171.39 

Lake City Sl,8~7.70 

Sturgeon Lokll City Si..!!94107-  -.--.........--~ 

Sturgeon Lak~ City $.1,772.53 

Sturgeon lak~ CltV ~2.136.43 ..,~---.... 



I I 	 36 

, I 37 


I 	 38 


I 	 39 

I 

! 	 40 


41
1 

i 	 42 


43 


Total: 

t 
$31,460 8811 Cathedral PInes Dr Sturgeon Lake City Sl,237.82 

$188,980 8825 Cathedral Plnes Dr Sturgeon Lake ~i!Y ~2,2B9.6~ 

$141,000 ;!2,O10.778833 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake Clt~,. 

52327.93$195/283 Sturgeon Lake City 8843 Cathedral Plnes Dr 

$95,920 ~1,706.548859 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon ~ke City 
51325.39$43,450 8875 Cathedral Pines Dr ; Sturgeon Lake CIty 

$142,230 ~2.015.118879 Cathtldral Pines Dr I Sturgeon Lake City 

Sturgeon Lake aty . $1333.02$44,550 • i 8895 Cathedral Pines Dr 


~821785.64-I $5,659A23 

http:821785.64
http:2.015.11
http:51325.39
http:1,706.54
http:52327.93
http:2,O10.77
http:Sl,237.82


ATTACHMENT B: Proposal Form 

Please' use the following form to identify the fees associated with your services under this 

program. 


Company Name: Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd. 


Address:539 Main Street South, Pine City, MN 55063 

Contact Person: Kevin A. Hofstad, Attorney Phone:320~629~7537 

Email Address:kevinh@ledlnandhofstad.com 

FEES 

The total fees to be charged for title and closing services for all properties identified on 
Attachment A is: 


Total Fees:__.!1:.$8=.!2=':'1.!..:78::.::5:..:.;.64~__________ 


Please verify the services that will be provided: 

Includes: ves 
Abstracting _x_ *based on a high estimate 
Closing Worksheets _x_ 
Assessment Search _x_ 
Closing Fee _x_ 
Title Exam _x_ 
Name Search _x_ 
Plat Drawing JC._ 
Recording Fees _x_ 
Legal review _x_ 
Title Insurance _x_ 
Wire Services _x_ 
Other: Title Issues _x_ De$cribe:Non~normalland issues 
Other: Taxes _x_ Describe:Not included in bid 

Proposed Closing Locations , 

Pine County Location Ledin & Hofstad, Ltd, 


Twin Cities Location _____--,.__~~____--2....__________~_ 

Please provide any additional information describing fees and/or services that you would 
provide under this contract. 

mailto:Address:kevinh@ledlnandhofstad.com


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Property Title and Closing Services 


Pine County, Minnesota 


Pine County, Minnesota is accepting proposals for Property Closing Services 

SEALED PROPOSALS MUST BE DELIVERED TO THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S OFFICE 
NO LATER THAN 1:00 P.M., May 23,2013. 

Proposals must be sealed and marked: 
Property Closing Services RFP 
CotUlty Administrators Office 
635 Northridge Dr., Suite 200 
Pine City, :MN 55063 

GENERAL 
a. Pl'Oposals must be received by the date and time specified. Proposals received after the specified date and 
time will not be accepted. 
b. Only SEALED proposals will be accepted. Fax or emailed proposals vvilJ not be accepted. 
c. All submittals in response to this request become public record and subject to public inspection. 
d. All materials s~bmitted in response to this tequest become the property of the County. 
e. Expenses incurred in pl'eparation, preMbid visits/meetings, submission, and any other work done in response 
to this RFP is the responsibHity ofthe bidder and will not be reimbursed by the County. 
f. By submitting this proposal, the proposer certifies that helshe has not acted in collusion with any other 
proposer or potential proposer, 
g. Proposals shall be valid for a period of at 1east sixty (30) days from due date. 
h. All work must be completed by August 16, 2013. _ 
i. Questions should be addressed to Matt Fulton, Flood Coordinator at Matt,fulton@co.p.ine,mn.us 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

In Jlme, 2012, significant flooding occurred within the Kettle, Willow and Moosehorn Rivers in Pine County. _ 
Numerous properties sustained significant and substantial damage as a result ofthe flooding. A federal 
emergency declaration was approved in 2012. The Pine County Board of Commissioners approved its 
pmticipation in a Voluntary Comprehensive Flood Mitigation Program involving emergency funding provided 
by the Minnesota Department ofNatural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Homeland Security Emergency 
MitigatioIt program. (HSE:M). 
The program involves the acquisition ofup to 43 properties substantially damaged by floodwaters. The 
progra.n1 is vo~untary, although over 80% of all property owners have crurently indicated their desirE! to 
participate in the property buyout program. The intent is to complete all acquisition activities by August 16, 
2013. The properties will be purchased by the city or township they are located in. Mter -acquisition, all 
structures will be demolished and the properties will be kept as public open space through deed restrictions. 

REQUEST 
Pine County is interestod in receiving P!Opo~als from interested Title Companies for assisting in the 
acquisition/closing process for the properties involved in the buyout program. The County's intention is to 
select and work with one Title Company that can best nieet the needs of the County and this program, although 
it reserves the right to reject all proposals received. The proposa1needs to describe the services to be provided 

http:progra.n1
mailto:Matt,fulton@co.p.ine,mn.us


as :well ~~ the cos~ .associ~ with each activity. The services provided should include all services necessary 
to Identity current hens against the propfllty and to ensure clean title following the transaction that is 
appropriately recorded in the County Recorder's Office. 
The potential properties to be acquired are identified on Attachment A. The prices shown on the attacrunen1 
should be considered the purchase price and all title work fees should be based on these prices. 
Each proposer needs the capability to provide closing services in the Twin Cities metro area and in pjne 
County. 

The Proposals should clearly identify the proposed specific work. activities to be completed and the related 
costs. This activity should include all abstract, assessment searches, closing fees, title exam, name search, plat 
drawing; and recording fees; as well as any other fees. including legal reviews and title insurance. The 
propoSal should indicate the specific title and closing fees for each property onAttachment A. The overall fees 
should also be identified on Attachment B as provided.. 

PROPOSAL FORMAT 

Proposals shall be submitted in the format provided on Attachment A and Attachment B 


EVALUATION CRITERIA . 

Evaluation will be based on, but not limited to, the following criteria (not necessaxily in priority order): 

Pricing: Although a concern, the proposal(s) with the most favorable pricing will not necessarily be awarded 

the contract(s). 

Qualifications: Proposer has met the terms, criteria., qualifications) etc. that are viewed to be necessary and or 

essential components ofthis proposal in the ophuon of the evaluation-committee. 

Reputation: Information acquired through references and other available Rources 

Experience: How many years the company and key personnel have worked with similar projects. 

Project Understt1Dding: Evidence proposer understands the county's needs. 


The evaluation may include an interview or requests for additional infonnation with those proposers deemed 

most competitive., . 


SIGNATURES 

The undersigned, b6ing familiar with 1he conditions and instruotions, hereby proposes to provide services (inoluding all 
8.HsociatOOexpenses) in accordance with the requirement.'l stipulated. 

~ CiO!:Ir1§ ...Y;'f<I rMIG- 32P-W?I-~!"-
Co . any Name Telephone Numbe:r 

20<; S#l Sf.&E ~SL5ntJu(C£cJ~ 

:~nw ERk3&nailAd~ Ghb-a~
i[;de:tS NamefTitle 



ATTACHMENT B: Proposal Form 

Please use the following form to identify the fees associated wIth your services under this 
program. . 

Address: 
conmctP~e-~~o~n~:-'~~~~-r-'~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~t~s~--

Email Address_"~~oOfJ'lo~~~~:::=".I..LJ...:..=:J.> 

FEES 

The total fees to be charged for title and closing services for aU properties identified on 
Attachment A is: 

Toml Fees: q7/ 3tfLf J ;>.-r;
i 

Please verify the services that will be providGcl: 

Includes: 

Abstracting 

Closing Worksheets 

Assessment Search 

Closing Fee 

Title Exam 

Name Search 

Plat Drawing 
Recording Fees 

Legal review 

Title Insurance 

Wire Services 

Other? 

Other? 




ATTACHMENT A: Identification of EliglbJe Parcels and Purchase amounts 

Proposal: Please identify the closing fees for each of the identi'l1ed properties below and 
place the overall proposed total fees on Attachment B. 

Because there is still some uncertainty about which properties will ultimately participate In the 
voluntary buyout program, the fees Identified below will be the am(mnt paid to the successful 
Title Company for that particular property. 

Parcel 

Number Total Value 
 property Address Jurisdiction Total ClosIng fM! 

1 $1S~,260 2750 central Avenue Kettle River Twp 0(LJ d--	 . 00 
2 $2:37,820 I 19394 Lon_g Lak~~R;:.;.d____.....j-:K:::.;et:;.;:;.t1e;;;....;R1..:;;.;v:.:;;;er;.....:T..;;;:.w£..-p--+--';.l::-~_=...25; tl..!l'I&:::...L..!:5::::..;O::::..",-j 

3 $72,600 2,994 Farm to Market Rd Sturgeon Lake:atv ;;l..o&O. ~ S
4 $76,.890 3015 Farm to Market Rd Sturgeon LakeiCltv ! ~07'3 ;;(5 
5 $119,350 7150 hid Eagle Ln Rutledge aty ~13. 00 
6 $lZ1,770 7166 Bald Eagle In Rutledge CIty 8::21 q. 5 () 
7 $127,110 7210 Bald Eagle In Rutledge City; • d;;'t30./)0 
8 $140,910 72.18 Bald Eagle Ln Rutledge City ;;Zcl8 d.. SI 

9 $147,950 7226 Bald EaRle Ln Rutledge City . ~ 7\ ()t...; ,.01) 
10 $136,070 7230 Bald Eagle Ln Rutledge CltV ~;;"/.n?, J S 
11 $173,360 7254 Bald Eagle Lane Rutledge Citv ;;)3 88. 50 
12 $196, 7288 Bald E8~le Ln Rutledge CIty I dl/(g :3 I ;;;g 
13 $45,980 72xx Bald Eagle Ln , Rutledge City 1_q7;;( SL)

--~$...;r.;2.:.;,35~,1:.;;8;';:OO+-+-7:...:40:.:.:8:...:0=COU:::..<=nt::.5l:Y:.::..Hwv.:::.:.....6-1----I-Ke=tt;;.:;la;£cR"'.:....:e::..;.;t~Twrp-........;-~ S10, 00 


20 __....:!S:.::2=..!9,=.26::..:0:....j--t·..:::.80~85;:;:..::.W1:...::l::.::ID.;:,::w..::;St=---____.r-:-:W..;;.;IIIo:.;.;w;;...;.~1ver City 1q d3 ,Ix) 
.21 $140,030 8092 WUlow St Willow River CIty d ;;2,..25 J..;;}.$ 
22. $S8~1~O~+_~~~6W~iII~OW~S~t________-+~WI~II1:.::..ow~ruv~e~r~CI~~~~r~~.O~)~41'7-7~5~i 
23 $105,4.,,09::-:0++-i' !:.::812:=:9~Wi:!.I::;Uo:.::w::...::S~t____~~-+.:..:..::.:Will.::;::OW:.:....:R:.::.ive.:...=.-rCrlt~Y--t---,~~J~/I'l",-·7.z.:·',:;>:5:;:6:';;;-1 
24 $12.6,.fiio ! 81137 Kettle Shores Loop Sturgeon Lak~ Twp J~. $175 
2.5 	 $190,960 a7a1i Kettle Shores Loop Sturgeon Laka Twp . dt.l~3, -75 

----.::!.!$:::S4.::!,::::590=-'I-~-!:8..:-:15::.:::9=-Ca~t::.:.:he;.:::d:..:::ra::.;1pj:':':m=e'=sDr=---~st;.;;;.;ur~ge::..::on~la.:...;.ke-:c-:Ity-"-" d Oq q, JS 

14 

lS $197,450 74290 Countv Hwy 61 

16 $156,970 . 76782 Debbie Ridge Rd 

17 
18 $51,92.0 80aO Willow St 

19 $106,700 8081 wnlow St 

2£ 

2.7 $1841690 

28 $168,630 

29 $149,600 

30 $145,420 

31 $168,300 

Kettle Rlver Twp B'-ftdtJ. Sf) 

Kettle RtverTwp c23331.~5 


Willow River City 1q9~ .06 
Kettle River Twp .::21 -rL .JS 

8161 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake CltV ;)1../;) l , ~S 
8765 Cathedral Pines Dr .~_+=Stu=-Jrg:.g,le=D;::.:n.=La:::kz-$C1=t::!.ty_r--;;2=::-t~~·7~d.-'-',;tS=:-=C";
B771 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake Clty d 3;DI S{) ,. 
8777 cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon tak~ City d ;)Q1. SD 
8779 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeofl Lake City .f;) 37;)., 62.S 

32- $115,0(;0 87BS Cathedral P\1IeS Dr Sturgeon Lake CIty d ;';-00. 00 
33 $81,840 _ 8793 Cathedral Pines Dr Sturgeon Lake Ci~ of0gq.. .sf) 

$10S,160 8797 cathedral Pines Or Sturgeon lake City <3L/ lp-1/ 5;D34 

3S $162..250 

i 

i 



36 

37 


38 


39 

40 


41 

42 


43 


Total 

$31,460 I 8811 Cathedral Pines Dr Stur~on lake City 

$188,980 8825 Cathiklral Pines Dr 

$141,900 .8833 cathedral Pines Dr 

$195,283 8843 Cathedral Pines Dr 

$95,920 8859 Cathedral Pines Dr 

$43450 8875 cathedral Pines Dr 

$142230 8879 Cathedral PInes Dr 

$44,550 1889& cathedral Pinell Dr 

$5,659,4231: 



PINE COUNTY REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 


Requested Board Date: 6/4/13 Consent Agenda (Please Circle) 

Regular Agenda 
Estimated Time: (Please Circle) 

10 Min. 15 Min. 
Time needed 

30Min. 45 Min. 1 hour 

Department Requesting Action: IT 

c/:f5Jb~ 5)2cr/13 
Department Head Signature Date 

Approve update ofSection 17 ofPersonnel Policy, Electronic Communications Resources (ECR) 
Policies. Included is memo with changes. 

Board Action Requested: (Attach additional pages if needed) 

Supporting Documents: ~None 



PINE COUNTY 
MlNN£soTA PINE COUNTY IT DEPARTMENT 

635 Northridge Drive NW, Suite 270 

Pine City, MN 55063 

Phone (320) 591-1700 


Fax (320) 591-1709 


5/14/13 


The IT committee reviewed the policy on May 21 st and recommended its adoption. 


Changes to the Electronics Communications Resources (ECR) policy include: 


Section 17.6.1 Remote Access Policy - Section G) Removed 

Section 17.7 Email Access - Added 

Section 17.9 Protection of Data and Equipment - Added E) and F) 

Section 17.9.1 Storing and Transferring Documents - Added 

Section 17.13 County Owned Cellular Telephone - Added 

Section 17.12 Reimbursement of Employee Owned ECR Expenses - Removed 

Lisa Blowers 
IT Supervisor 



17. ELECTRONICS COMMUNICATIONS RESOURCES (ECR) POLICY 

17.1. 	 Purpose 
Pine County provides employees with access to and use of a variety of electronic 
communications resources (ECR). The County seeks to maximize the benefits of modem 
technology by striking an appropriate balance between the efficient use of ECR and the 
protection of county assets and interests. 

These resources are provided to employees to allow them to be more efficient and to have 
access to information that is necessary for them to carry out their responsibilities. Employees 
are required to use these resources in a manner consistent with their position and work 
responsibilities with the County. 

Inappropriate use of the County's ECR and any violation of this electronic communications 
policy may lead to discipline, up to and including termination of employment. 

17.2. 	 Applicabilitv 
This policy applies to anyone accessing or using County ECRs including, (regular, seasonal, 
part-time, full-time, temporary). contractors, volunteers, interns, employees of other local or 
state units of government working within Pine County. elected officials. and other individuals 
who have been granted access to and use of the County's electronic communications. 

17.3. 	 Definitions 
17.3.l. 	 Electronic Communication Resources (ECR) all equipment and software that 

retain, transmit. copy. modify. analyze or process information in any form. 
Electronic communication resources include, but are not limited to. the County's 
telephone system, voice mail system. email system. mainframe computers/mini 
computers (AS400), servers, desktop and laptop computers, (MDT) mobile data 
terminals. GIS equipment, (PDA) Personal Digital Assistants, electronic access 
cards, printers, databases, data storage media, cellular phones. pagers, Internet 
access, Internet browsers. computer applications, operating systems or similar 
devices. 

17.3.2. 	 Electronic Data System - means any and all information or data that are received, 
sent, stored. created, processed. transferred, or communicated in any way by or 
through any County ECR including, but not limited to, computer files, e-mail, 
voice mail. and Internet access. 

17.3.3. 	 ~~~ - is a global system that links computer networks all over the world, 
connecting users through service networks such as email and the world wide web 
that can be accessed through ECRs. 

17.3.4. 	 Government Data - is defined by Minnesota Statutes section 13.02, subdivision 7. 

17.3 	 IT Department - The name of Pine County's information and technology 
department. 


Page 1 of 12 




17.4. Use 
17.4.1. Access and Assignment 

All individuals requiring access to any ECR and electronic data system needs the 
approval of the applicable department head. Department heads must specifically 
authorize such access in writing to the IT Department. 

Individual departments may have a number of ECR available for check out by 
employees for County business. Each department shall have a procedure for the 
signing out. care and use of ECR by employees. It is the responsibility of the 
department head or supervisor to ensure ECR are not abused and the usage is 
monitored to keep from exceeding the number of pooled minutes and/or data plans 
allocated to the ECR. 

17.4.2. Business Use 
The County's ECR and electronic data systems are County property and intended 
for County business. These resources are not to be used for employee personal 
gain or to support or advocate for non-county related business or purposes. All use 
of County ECR is subject to management access and may be monitored, pursuant 
to this policy. System integrity will be defined to meet this Policy and to safeguard 
the County's hardware. software, and information. 

17.4.3. Limited Personal Use 
The County's ECR are provided to support County Business and. accordingly, are 
intended to be used primarily for business related purposes. Unless prohibited by 
County Policy or by the applicable department head, employees may engage in 
occasional personal use of the County's ECR. Individual department heads may 
determine when an employee's personal use becomes excessive or otherwise 
violates this policy. The County reserves the rights to reduce or eliminate any 
personal use by an employee on a case-by-case basis, or take disciplinary action. 

All personal use must be limited such that it: 
A) is done on the employee's personal time. and not the County time; 
B) does not interfere with County business or the use of its computer systems; 
C) does not interfere with the employee's job performance or activities; 
D) does not interfere with the job performance or activities of any other employee; 
E) is not for personal financial gain or other promotional activities; 
F) does not damage any of the County's computer systems; 
G) does not result in any expense. financial loss, or obligation for the County; 
H) does not result in the consumption of County resources; 
I) does not violate any rule set forth in this policy; 
J) does not violate any federal, state, or local law. 

Such use and any messages or data created or accessed will be treated no 
differently from other messages or data. 

Page 2 of 12 



17.4.4. Unacceptable Use 
Unacceptable uses of the County's ECR resources include. but are not limited to. 
the following: . 

A) Threatening or Fraudulent Messages. No person may use any ECR system to 
intentionally threaten or offend another person or to send a fraudulent message. 

B) 	 Harassment and Discrimination. No person may use any ECR system to harass 
or discriminate against another person on the basis of race. color, creed. 
religion. national origin. sex. marital status. status with regard to public 
assistance, disability. sexual orientation. or age. All County policies on 
harassment and discrimination apply to conduct performed using any County 
computer system 

C) Pornographic. Obscene. Vulgar. Lewd. and Sexually Explicit Material. No 
person may use any ECR system to seek out, access. upload. download. store. 
transmit. display or distribute pornographic, obscene, vulgar, lewd, or sexually 
explicit language or material. With approval from a department head and the IT 
Department. employees may access prohibited sites for job related purposes. 

D) Harm to Reputation. No person may use any ECR system to defame another or 
in a manner that harms the reputation of the County. 

E) Disruption. No person may use an ECR system in a manner that damages, 
disrupts, or interferes with any County operation, service, equipment, or the job 
performance of an employee. Such disruptions or interference includes, but is 
not limited to. receiving or the distribution of unsolicited or personal 
advertising, or the transmission of unauthorized programs or data. 

F) 	 Vandalism. No person may use any ECR system to directly or indirectly 
vandalize, damage, or disable the personal, real, or intellectual property of 
another person or organization. or to make unauthorized modification to the 
property of another (including information or equipment owned by the County). 
i.e.: This rule prohibits "spamming", "hacking" or the propagation of a "worm" 
or "virus" into any computer system. 

G) Unauthorized Interception or Access. No users may use or override another 
person's password or codes or take any other action to intercept or access 
another person's materials, electronic information, or files (including email) 
without the prior permission of that person. 

H) Copyright Infringement. No person may use any ECR system to violate any 
copyright law or otherwise use the intellectual property of another person or 
entity without proper authorization. The unauthorized duplication of computer 
software constitutes copyright infringement and is strictly prohibited by the 
policy. Many software companies will allow a single copy of the software to be 
made for backup or archival purposes. Before making such a copy employees 
must verify with the IT Department, that such action is permitted under the 
terms and conditions of the software license agreement. 

Page 3 of 12 



I) 	 Commercial Use and Private Causes. No person may use any ECR system for 
private commercial use. for personal financial gain. to promote any private 
cause (including but not limited to political or religious causes). or to enter into 
any contractual relationship without obtaining prior written permission from the 
County Administrator or Department Head. A copy of this written approval 
should be sent to the IT Department for tracking and security purposes. 
Similarly, no person may use any County computer in a manner that could 
reasonably result in any expense, financial loss. or obligation for the County. 
The County hereby disclaims any liability for any unauthorized financial 
obligation incurred by unacceptable use of its computer system in violation of 
this rule. 

J) 	 Gambling. No person may use any ECR system to gamble or engage in a game 
of chance for money or other valuable consideration. 

K) 	Disguising Identitv. No person may disguise or attempt to disguise their 
identity while using any ECR system. For example. individuals may not 
disguise their identity while using an ECR system to send or receive 
information via email or the Internet. With approval from a Supervisor and/or 
Department Head. employees may disguise their identity for investigative 
purposes within the scope of their job description. 

L) Violating the Law. No person may use any ECR system in a manner that 
violates any local. state, or federal law. 

M) Conduct Unbecoming. No person may use any ECR system to engage in 
conduct that is otherwise unbecoming of a County employee. 

N) Downloading Files (saving program or data files from an external source to a 
ECR) Files that do not serve a business purpose are not to be downloaded from 
the Internet or other external source or installed on county-owned equipment 
without express consent by the employee's Supervisor and/or Department Head 
and knowledge of the IT Department. The possibility of downloading or 
installing a file with spyware, malware or a computer virus is great and care 
must be taken to not contaminate any computers in the County. 

0) 	Uploading Files (tran.~ferring program files from a local ECR to another ECR) 
Files are not to be uploaded to the Internet without express consent by the 
employee's Supervisor and/or Department Head and knowledge of IT 
Department. 

P) ViewinglDownloading of Non-Business Streaming Media - The accessing, 
viewing, downloading, or any other method of retrieving streaming media is 
prohibited. This includes, but is not limited to. streaming audio and/or video, 
on-line radio, entertainment sites, sports or pornographic sites. 

Q) - The playing of any computerized games regardless of source is 
prohibited. 

Page 4 of 12 



17.4.5. 

17.4.6. 

17.4.7. 

R) 	 Accessim: anv email other than county authorized Outlook and State of 
Minnesota email (i.e. MAXIS/PRISM users). Employees are prohibited from 
retrieving emails via other systems such as web-based email (i.e. yahoo, msn, 
gmail, etc) 

S) 	 Access involving Internet Chat Relay. Chat Rooms and Instant Messaging 
The use and/or accessing of chat room and instant messaging is prohibited 
unless authorized by the employee's individual department head or supervisor 
and IT Department. 

T) Non-employee access - Allowing anyone other than County employees access 
to information technology tools. 

U) Unauthorized Removal of County EquipmentlData - No County equipment 
and/or Data shall be removed from county facilities without specific 
authorization of the department head or supervisor. 

V) Unauthorized Use of Non-count\! Equipment - No non-county owned 
equipment shall be used and/or operated in whole or in part for the production 
of county data without the approval of the department head and IT Department. 

W) Cell Phones - County owned cellular telephones are for County business. 
Employees may make personal telephone calls, they are to be limited to cell 
phone plan. Employees shall not be required to reimburse the cost to make 
emergency or 911 calls. 

No Expectation of Privacv 
Employees who use any County ECR and access any electronic data system have 
no expectation of privacy in any information that is backed up. stored, processed, 
or transferred by any County ECR, including but not limited to e-mail and 
information on Internet access. regardless of whether it is for personal or work 
purposes. Like any other data stored on County's ECR, data created from an 
employee's personal use is subject to periodic inspection and monitoring. By 
engaging in use of any County computer system, employees and other users 
consent to such inspection and monitoring. 

Policy Modifications 
Although elected officials and department heads may adopt policies that are more 
restrictive than this policy, this policy establishes the minimum standards for use of 
any County system and any information sent, received, stored. or processed by a 
County system. In the event of a conflict between this policy and another policy, 
this policy controls. 

Acknowledgement of Policv 
Each individual department head and elected official shall provide a copy of this 
policy to every employee in his or her department and any other individual granted 
access to ECR and electronic data systems. Every individual shall sign the required 

Page 5 of 12 



document to acknowledge review of this policy. The signed agreement is to be 
filed with the Administrator's Office. 

17.5. System Integrity 
All employees and ECR users of county equipment must protect the ECR system and 
electronic data systems through the observation of system integrity. Deactivating security 
features is prohibited. 

17.5.1. 	 Password Security 
All employees are required to create secure passwords. They are to take reasonable 
precautions to protect the security of their passwords. Employees may not share 
passwords or user names, or use another person's password or user name when 
using County ECR unless there is a significant business interest that has been 
identified and approved by the individual's Supervisor or Department Head. 

If an individual department head or designee directs an employee to provide his or 
her passwords or access codes, the employee must immediately provide the current 
passwords and access codes. 

Some of these computers will be used by the public and will be set up to use User 
ID's and Passwords designed to limit authority. At no time shall any employee's 
User ID and Password be shared with any member of the public. To assure that 
data is secure, it may also be necessary to use other control measures, such as 
keyboard and/or screen saver passwords. Since these measures disable the 
equipment, these types of passwords should only be used with the Department 
Head's signed approval and be given to the user's direct supervisor and kept in a 
secure location. 

17.5.2. 	 Software Installation and Use 
Employees may not install any software on a County owned ECR. The IT 
Department reserves the right to remove unauthorized software at any time and 
without prior notice. 

17.5.3. 	 Scanning for Viruses 
Every employee must scan every computer file he or she receives from an outside 
or external data source including, but not limited to, USB flash drives, external 
hard drives, CDs, memory cards. 

Application executables (i.e ..EXE..VBS, .CMD, etc) or data files from all outside 
sources, including the Internet, must be scanned by the County's anti-virus 
software before first use. Executables received through e-maiL will be blocked and 
a written request needs to be made to IT Department authorizing installation. 

17.5.4. 	 Logging Off 
All users are to log off the system at the end of the day. The workstation will also 
lock after a determined length of time. 

Page 6 of 12 



17.6. 	 Remote Access 
The purpose of remote access is for employees to effectively and efficiently perform their job 
duties away from their worksite and to meet department needs when responding to emergency 
situations which prevent employee access to worksites. 

County employees shall access the County's technological systems from remote locations only 
as approved by their supervisors. Access shall be via a secure gateway connection to the 
county infonnation network. All other ECR policies governing information security, software 
licensing and data privacy apply. 

Tvpes of Remote Access 
A) County Wireless Network Access on a County ECR:_A county employee is accessing 

county network files through county wireless network while at a county building. 
B) Internet Access on a County ECR off-site in the field~ A county employee is using an 

air card or non-county wireless to access Internet and web-based work applications. 
C) 	Working on county files on a Non-County ECR: A county employee works on 

electronic work files out of the office as required for field work per job description or a 
project of a limited time frame and scope. They may have taken the file home via a CD. 
jump drive. or sent via email. 

D) Access of county web email from a Non-County ECR: A county employee checks their 
email online from home or other location. 

E) 	 Access of county network files via Internet through VPN (Key Fob) regardless of 
whether it is a personal or county owned ECR: A county employee could access all files 
on county servers from off-site. 

17.6.1. 	 Remote Access Policy 
A) To access county systems. an employee must have a stable operating system on 

their personal ECR with automatic updates. 
B) All ECR used to access the county network remotely shall have protective 

software installed. These include applicable anti-virus, firewalL and spyware 
programs that are updated weekly. The IT Department will provide 
infonnation regarding appropriate software to meet these requirements and 
training in its operation upon request. 

C) Employees shall remove county non-public data from an ECR upon completion 
of the task which the data was needed. 

D) 	ECR's used remotely shall not be left unattended and shall be protected from 
access by unauthorized individuals. Data must be reasonably secured from 
view, theft. and the environment. 

E) Non-public data shall not be removed from the worksite or copied and stored on 
any ECR, thumb drive, CD or similar device unless authorized by the 
employee's Department Head/Supervisor to meet a specific county business 
need. 

F) 	 Additional software or programs may not be loaded on a county ECR used 
remotely or the host PC ("sync device") without prior written authorization of 
the Department Heath or Supervisor and the IT Department. 

G) Software loaded on personally owned ECR must not impede the functionality 
of any synchronizing software or host device. 

H) Software for the purpose of synchronizing will be selected by the IT 
Department. 

Page 7 of 12 



I) No county financial transactions should occur remotely. 

17.7. 	 EmaiJ Access 
The County reserves the right, as is reasonably necessary, to search, review, audit, intercept 
or access any employee's use of ECR. All work products created through the use of 
electronic communications resources are the property of Pine County. Any materials 
developed. composed, sent or received using County equipment or resources will remain the 
property of Pine County. 

The use of the County's electronic resources is not private. Internet access and messages sent 
are subject to logging, monitoring, interception. and forwarding, which is beyond the control 
of the person using the resources. Although logs and email messages may appear to the user 
to have been deleted, the message or the data that it contained may nevertheless continue to 
exist in the network in which the resources are connected. Stored logs, email messages and 
other computerized data are discoverable documents, which may be exchanged in litigation. 
The content of logs or email messages may subject the sender to civil liability, discipline. and 
criminal sanctions. 

Users should be aware that even though they have a confidential password to access email, 
this does not suggest that the email is the property right of the employee. Management retains 
the right to, and shall maintain the ability-to, access any employee's password. protected 
email or other electronic data on devices. An employee assigned a computer access account 
is responsible for all usage of that resource. Users should not share their password with 
anyone other than their supervisor and must take all reasonable precautions for password 
protection and maintenance. 

The County may limit the size of a Users mailbox depending on available resources. 
Department Heads will receive up to 1GB mailbox, while other County employees will 
receive 200MB or other sizes specified by the IT Supervisor. Email will also be stored no 
longer then one year from sent/received date. The email system is not an appropriate form of 
storage and important documents and sensitive information must be backed up outside of the 
email system. Electronic communication that is simple correspondence and not an official 
record or transaction of County business should be deleted as soon as possible and should not 
be retained by employees for more than three months. In the event a User is terminated or 
resigns the Department Head/Supervisor will retain control of the Users mailbox for 6 
months or otherwise determined by the IT Supervisor, after the Users has left employment. 
After six months the mailbox will be deleted from the Email system permanently. 

17.8. 	 Data Privacy 
ECR may be used within the scope of employee's duties to retain data on clients of the 
County. Employees are advised that such data, its retention, use and disclosure, are subject to 
individual department policy, Federal and State laws including the Minnesota Data Practices 
Act law. 

The contents of all electronic system data generated by County ECR and sent by, between 
and/or to individuals covered by this policy may be disclosed within or outside the County 

Page 8 of 12 



without the pennission of the individual at any time for any purpose deemed necessary by the 
County, subject to any limitations imposed by law including but not limited to the Minnesota 
Government Data Practices Act. Under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act the 
public has broad access to government records. Government records include data in the 
possession of the government "regardless of its physical fonn, storage media or conditions of 
use." Electronic data is subject to data practices requests. 

17.9. Protection of Data and Equipment 
A) 	 All employees must exercise care in addressing email messages to ensure that they 

are sent to the proper addressee. 
B) 	 The County email system is meant to be a temporary medium for transmission of 

data. All government data that is required to be maintained pursuant to law shall be 
maintained separate from the County's email system. All employees must transfer 
such data to a different medium. 

C) Employees are to report any inappropriate email, files, images, or such received to 
their Supervisor and the IT Department immediately. 

D) Employees aware of the damage. stolen or misplacement of any county owned 
ECR, thumb drive. or CD, shall report it immediately to their supervisor and IT. 

E) 	 Electronic communication that constitutes an official record of County business 
must be kept in accordance with all records retention requirements and should be 
copied to appropriate network files for storage. 

F) 	 If you are unsure whether an electronic communication or other document is a 
government record for purpose of records retention laws, or is considered protected 
or private under data practices. check with your supervisor. 

17.9.1. 	 Storin!! and Transferring Documents 
Electronic documents, including e-mails, electronic communication and business
related materials created on an employee's home or personal computer should be 
stored on the County's network in accordance with County records retention policies 

and 	 the Minnesota Data Practices Act. 

17.10. Monitoring 
The use of the County's electronic resources is not pri vate. Internet access and messages sent 
are subject to tracking, logging. monitoring. interception, and forwarding, which is beyond the 
control of the person using the resources. Although logs and email messages may appear to 
the user to have been deleted. the message or the data that it contained may nevertheless 
continue to exist in the network in which the resources are connected. Stored logs, email 
messages and other computerized data are discoverable documents, which may be exchanged 
in litigation. The content of logs or email messages may subject the sender to civil liability, 
discipline, and criminal sanctions. 

The County reserves the right. as is reasonably necessary, to search, review, audit, intercept or 
access any employee's use of electronic communications resources. All work products created 
through the use of electronic communications resources are the property of Pine County. Any 
materials developed, composed, sent or received using County equipment or resources will 
remain the property of Pine County. 

Page 9 of 12 



Supervisors may review the usage of the County's Network and the County's access to the 
Internet and Online services by employees they supervise to determine whether there have 
been any breaches of security, violations of County policy, or other violation of duty on the 
part of employees. 

If IT becomes suspicious of an employees inappropriate use of the ECR policy. they must 
notify and involve the appropriate Department Head/Supervisor before conducting an 
investigation. 

Supervisors may request access to an employee's e-mail through the IT Department, for 
employees that are on leave of absence, paid time off or otherwise absent or at any other time 
that the Supervisor deems necessary for the County's business purposes. A written request 
should be sent to IT for tracking and security purposes 

17.11. Separation of Employment 
Employees who resign, are terminated. laid off. suspended or otherwise cease (permanently or 
temporarily) their employment with Pine County have no right to the contents of their email 
messages, network drives, and local computer files and shall not be allowed access to the 
network system. 

17.12. Purchasing and Setup 
Purchasing of ECR hardware and software shall be processed through the IT Department for 
review. Purchasing will be based on need and appropriateness, procurement of quotations, 
and processing central County administration for approval by the County Board, County 
Administrator, or Purchasing Agent. with all such purchases subject to the County purchasing 
policy. 

All computer-related equipment will be setup by the IT Department staff. They will be 
configured by IT Department and all necessary software will be loaded up prior to installation 
in the department. All resident games and other non-essential software will be removed prior 
to distribution and installation. 

Only software purchased by. licensed to, or authorized by the County can be installed on 
County computers. The use of this software must be in compliance with the license agreement 
and cannot be copied to multiple computers unless so permitted by the license agreement. The 
IT Department will track County purchased or licensed applications to assure County 
compliance. 

17.13. 	County Owned Cellular Telephone 
County owned cellular telephones are for County business. Employees may make personal 
telephone calls, but they are to be limited by cell phone plan. Employees shall not be required 
to reimburse the cost to make emergency or 911 calls. 

Cell phones are County property and must adhere to the following: 
1. Cell phones are required to have a lock screen password. 

Page 10 of 12 



2. Cell phones are subject to device management including remote wiping of the device if 
the device is lost or stolen. 

3. No applications are to be installed that compromise Pine County's data security 
including Pine County Email System. 

4. Users are not allowed to backup County data to personal online storage. 
Pine County Email on Personal Devices: 

County business on non-county phones is discouraged and will be handled on a case by 
case basis. Email for personal devices: 

1. Access to the County's exchange email is allowed on County owned cell phones 
only. 
2. Personal cell phones may access email through the OWA located at 

"mail.co.pine.mn.us/owa" 
3. No applications are to be installed that compromise Pine County's data security 

including the Pine County Email System. 

When accessing County email through these means, it is the employee's responsibility to 
ensure confidentiality and security. 

17.14. Penalties 
Any employee in violation of this policy may be disciplined in accordance with the Pine 
County Personnel Rules and Policies. labor agreements, and/or other applicable rules or laws. 
Violations may be grounds for dismissal. In addition, violations of this policy may be referred 
for criminal prosecution, if appropriate. 

17.15. Implementation 
IT Department and Department heads are responsible for the implementation and adherence of 
this policy within their department. 

HISTORY: 

This policy was originally adopted by motion of the Pine County Board of Commissioners on April 19
th 

2011 and may be subsequently amended by motion. 

APPROVAL by Pine County Board on :May 21 st, 2013. 


Page 11 of 12 




Emplovee Pledl!e to Confidentiality 

I understand that Pine County provides services to clients that are private and 
confidential and that I playa significant role in respecting the privacy rights of clients 
associated with Pine County. I understand that in order to provide related services to 
our clients. it is necessary that I receive personal client information and that the 
information may exist in a variety of forms such as electronic, oral. written or 
photographic and that this information is strictly confidential and protected by federal 
and state laws. 

I agree to comply with all confidentiality-related policies and procedures enacted by 
Pine County. If 1, at any time. during my entire employment knowingly or 
inadvertently breach the patient confidentiality policies and procedures, I agree to 
notify my supervisor immediately. I also agree to return any and all client 
confidential information in my possession. 

This pledge does not constitute a contract, nor does this pledge imply an employment 
contract. nor does it insure continued employment. 

I have read and understand all privacy policies and procedures that have been 
provided by Pine County. I agree to abide by these policies. I understand that if I fail 
to abide by these policies, I may be subject to following: 

• Disciplinary action. which may include a verbal or written warning, 
suspension or possible discharge. 

• Civil Liability: fines in the amounts between $100 and $25,000 per year. 

• Criminal Liability: fines up to $250,000 AND up to 10 years in prison. 

Printed Name 

Signature 

Date 

Administration Use Only: 

Please have employee sign and date this form and detach from the ECR, scan and send a copy 

to the IT Department. 


Page 12 of 12 


